- STEWART OF GARTH -

ORIGIN. The Stewarts of Garth are descended from James Stewart, one of the natural sons of Sir Alexander
Stewart, Earl of Buchan and Lord of Badenoch, fourth son of King Robert II. He m. to Janet, only daughter and
heiress of Sir Alexander Menzies of Fortingall, second son of Sir Robert Menzies of Weem, (she resigned her
lands of Fortingall in favour of Sir Alexander Stewart, her father-in-law on 28 October, 1379/80"), with whom he
acquired these lands and is styled as brother to Alexander Stewart, Earl of Mar, in a charter dated 24 December,
1409. He was father of,

1. Neil Stewart, a member of an assise in 1428.
2. John Gorm Stewart, one of the Atholl men who captured the assassins of King James I. in 1437, and was killed in
conflict with Sir William de Ruthven at the North Inch of Perth on 24 June, 1443.2

NEIL STEWART, OF FORTINGALL, a member of an assise at the court of Dunkeld in 1428 to determine the
rights of JohnMacNab to the lands of Bovain. He was father of,

1. John Stewart, of Fothergill or Fortingall, (see below).

2. David Stewart, witness to an Instrument of Sasine following upon a Precept from the Chancery for the lands of
Easter and Wester Duntallich in favour of John Stewart, Earl of Atholl, on 28 March, 1474,® and is said to have
been father of,

2a} John Stewart, said to have been father of,*
2b} Robert Stewart, 1* of Fincastle and Urrard, (see Stewart of Fincastle).
2b} Alexander Stewart, 1** of Balnakeilly and Foss, (see Stewart of Foss).
2b} John Stewart, 1** of Innerkynnachan, obtained these lands and had issue from which descended the
first family of Kynnachan.
3. Neil Stewart, m. to Elizabeth Gordon and is styled as brother of John Stewart of Garth in 1478.
4. A daughter, m. to Patrick de Rattray, of that Ik, (he d on 4 October, 1461,) and had issue.

JoHN STEWART, 3™ OF FOTHERGILL OR FORTINGALL, had a Crown Charter for these lands on 30 October,

1455,° and had a charter for the lands of Killibroath and Disert in the Earldom of Atholl from Andrew,

Lord Gray, on 23 August, 1462.° He acquired the lands of Edradynate from John Stewart, Earl of Atholl,

on 24 July, 1465, and had a charter from Alexander Stewart, of Grantully, for the lands of Pitcairn, lying

in the Barony of Appin of Dull, on 2 December, 1465.7 He had a charter from Sir John de Ogilvy of

Lintrethin for the lands of Tillicurran, Dalgarne and Glennatay, with the fortalice thereof, lying in the

Lordship of Strathardill on 7 October, 1470,® and had a charter for the lands of Strathardill from David

Ogilvy of Inchmartin on 28 April, 1473.° He m. to a woman by the name of Marion, d. on 10 December,

1475,'° and was father of,

1. Neil Stewart, 4" of Fortingall, (see below).

2. Alexander Stewart, 1% of Bonskeid, had a charter for the lands of Bonskeid from his father on 31 December, 1474,
and d. in 1501. He had issue (see Stewart of Bonskeid).

3. James Stewart, styled as brother german to the deceased Neil Stewart of Garth when he was appointed one of the
procurators to Alexander Stewart, brother of Thomas Stewart of Grantully, in a dispute with Agnes Murray, Lady
Grantully, over the rights to the lands of the lands of Petcairns on 21 July, 1501."
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NEIL STEWART, 4™ OF FORTINGALL, had a charter of confirmation of the lands and lordship of Appin of Dull,
Glenquaich, Glenlyon, Strathbraan and Rannoch, for the space of 19 years under the Great Seal of King
James III. on 24 January, 1478, and in which he is styled as son and heir to the deceased John Stewart of
Fothergill.'> He m. to Elizabeth, daughter of Alexander Stewart, 3™ of Grantully, with whom he had a
charter of confirmation of the lands of Bordland of Fortingall (Fothergill), Tullichmoulin, Artaskat,
Drummacharry and Ewquhirblaris, all lying in the barony of Fortingall, following upon a resignation by
Neil for a charter of joint-infeftment on 22 August, 1495." He d. on 31 January, 1499, and was father of,

1. Alexander Stewart, the eldest son, concerning whom his father entered into a contract with John Stewart, Earl of
Atholl, on 22 January, 1477, that his said father would become “man” to the Earl in return for for his bestowing
his eldest son Alexander Stewart in marriage with Christian Stewart, daughter of the John, Earl of Atholl, and in
the event of the death of Alexander then he would give his next son Neil Stewart."> He dsp.

2. Neil Stewart, 5" of Fortingall, (see below).

3. John Stewart, in Duntaullich, (see Stewart of Duntaullich and Drumcharry).

NEIL STEWART, 5™ OF FORTINGALL, infeft as heir to his deceased father in the lands of Fortingal on 5 June,
1500,'¢ and burned Weem Castle in July of 1503."” He had a charter of confirmation under the Great Seal
of King James IV. for the lands of Bowrek, Leyduyk, Lassintullich, Tullochresk, Kynseathane, Pitdorny,
Uchterblaris, and the Mains of Fortingall all lying within the barony of Fortingall on 1 March, 1505.'® He
resigned his lands of Fortingall with the castle and fortalice thereof with the lands of Pitdorny,
Tullichcurren and Dalnagarn in favour of Alexander Gordon, Earl of Huntly, who had a charter of
confirmation under the Great Seal of King James IV. on 25 March, 1506, in which he is styled as son and
heir of the deceased Neil Stewart of Fothergill.'”” He m. firstly by 1 March, 1505, to Christian, daughter of
John Stewart, 1* Earl of Atholl, (she d on 1 June, 1538, and was buried at Dull*’) and secondly to Mariote
MacQueen whom he is said to have murdered by pushing from the cliffs at Garth in 1545. He d. in 1554
and was father of,

1. John Stewart, of Bunrannoch, (see below).

2. Marie Stewart, retoured heir to her brother John Stewart and her father Neil Stewart in the lands of

Calziebroachan on 29 July, 15772

JOHN STEWART, OF BUNRANNOCH, infeft in the lands of Calziebrochan as heir to Neil Stewart of Fortingall,
his father, on 30 January, 1557, and dsp by drowning in 1577.%

- STEWART OF BONSKEID -

ORIGIN. The Stewarts of Bonskeid are descended from Alexander Stewart, younger son of John Stewart, 3¢ of
Fortingall, who had a charter from his father for the lands of Bonskeid on 31 December, 1474. He was father of,
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ROBERT STEWART, 2"° OF BONSKEID, had a Precept for these lands as heir to his father on 19 May, 1501, and
assisted his cousin Neil Stewart, of Fortingall in the burning of Weem Castle in July of 1503. He d. in the
first months of 1546 and was father of,

JAMES STEWART, 3® OoF BONSKEID, had a Precept for these lands as heir to his father on 7 July, 1546, and m.
to Janet, daughter of James Stewart, of Fincastle. He d. on 16 October, 1565, and was father of,

JOHN STEWART, 4™ OF BONSKEID, had a charter for these lands from his father on 12 June, 1563, and m. to
Margaret, only daughter and heiress of Alexander Stewart, 1 of Carse. He was killed in 1606 by
Alexander Stewart MacGillecallum?® and was father of,

ALEXANDER STEWART, 5™ OF BoNSKEID, had Sasine following on a Precept as heir to his father on 1 June,
1607, subscribed a bond for reset of the Clan Gregor on 8 October, 1621, and m. to Margaret, daughter of
Alexander Robertson, 8" of Lude, (she was divorced from her first husband Robert Robertson, second
son of George Robertson, of Faskally,) to whom he granted an Instrument of Sasine for the lands of
Bunrannoch on 7 September, 1610.% He was father of,

1. John Stewart, 6™ of Bonskeid, (see below).

2. James Stewart, 1* of Wester Cluny, had a charter from his father for the lands of Wester Cluny on 29 May, 1625,
in which he is styled as his second son*” and m. to Barbara, daughter of Duncan Menzies, of Comrie. He was
father of,

2a} Alexander Stewart, 2™ of Wester Cluny, bap. at Wester Clunie on 24 June, 1639, and had and Instrument of
Sasine from his father for the lands of Wester Cluny on 3 July, 1667. He m. firstly in 1667 to Catherine,
daughter of Duncan Campbell, 2™ of Lagvinsheoch and Monzie, and secondly to Isabel, daughter of John
Stewart, fiar of Balnakellie, (¢/zm at Dunkeld on 20 December, 1680,%). He had issue,
2b} James Stewart, 3™ of Wester Cluny, succeeded his father and was appointed Minister of Moulin. He
m. at Moulin on 12 August, 1709, to Elizabeth, daughter of Colin Campbell, 4" of Monzie, and d. in
1735. He was father of,
2¢} James Stewart, 4" of Wester Cluny, b. in around 1712 and was appointed Minister of
Kilbrandon. He m. firstly on 21 July, 1750, to Marjory, daughter of Campbell, of Ardchattan,
(she d on 16 January, 1754), and secondly on 20 February, 1759, to Elizabeth, daughter of
Lachlan MacLachlan, of Fassifern, and d. on 27 May, 1787. He had issue,
2d} Patrick Stewart, b. on 27 September, 1751, and d. on 7 May, 1759.
2d} Marjory Stewart, b. on 14" and ¢ at Kilbrandon on 29 January, 1754, and m. to Neil
Campbell, of Lotterie.
2d} James Stewart, c. at Kilbrandon on 18 July, 1760, and d. on 15 August, 1761.
2d} Patrick Stewart, ¢. at Kilbrandon in January of 1765, and d. on 6™ April of that year.
2d} Elizabeth Stewart, 5. on 27" June and c. at Kilbrandon on 13 July, 1761. She m. on 9
August, 1785, to John MacFarlane, Minister of Kilbranden, (he d on 24 September,
1806,) and d. on 22 April, 1834.
2c¢} Patrick Stewart, m. at Perth on 13 June, 1755, to Katherine Drummond and is said to have dsp.
2¢} John Stewart, who was father of,
2d} James Stewart, m. to Beatrice, daughter of William Austin, Perth, and d. on 4 October,
1805. He was father of,
2e} Robert Campbell Stewart, who dsp in 1865.
2¢} Charles Stewart, emigrated to North Carolina and m. in Virginia in around 1748 to Hannah
Kirk. He dsp on 15 November, 1807.
2¢} Alexander Stewart, b. on 9 December, 1725, and emigrated in 1744 to Bath, North Carolina. He
m. in 1756 to Anne, daughter of Colonel William Spense, was appointed Clerk of the County
Court, and became a Plane and Timber Merchant there. He @ on 30 July, 1772, and had issue,
2d} William Stewart,
2d} James Stewart,
2d} Alexander Stewart,
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2d} Anne Stewart,
2d} Elizabeth Stewart,
2d} Dorothy Stewart, all of whom were 5. in America.
2¢} Jean Stewart, c¢. at Moulin on 6 January, 1729, and m. to William Campbell, Minister of
Kilchrenan, (¢/m on 24 March, 1749. He was b. in 1713 and d. on 26 September, 1763). She d.
on 20 January, 1826, and had issue.
2¢} Anna Stewart, m. to Alexander Robertson, of Balnacraig.
2b} Alexander Stewart, became a merchant in Dundee and dsp.
2b} Charles Stewart, became a Coronet of Dragoons, m. in around 1735 to Rose, daughter of Robert
Hall, of Mount Hall, County Down, and d. in 1774. He had issue.
2b} Anna Stewart, m. to Donald Robertson, only son and heir of Donald Robertson, of Eastertyre, (¢/m
28 July, 1688, in which she is styled as eldest daughter to her father®)
2b} Jean Stewart, m. at Dull on 24 June, 1711, to John Stewart, 8 of Bonskeid, (he was widow of Amelia,
daughter of Charles Stewart, of Ballechin).
2b} Margaret Stewart, m. at Dull on 24 October, 1714, to David Campbell, third son of Duncan
Campbell, 2™ of Duneaves, and had issue.
2a} Robert Stewart, 1% of Killiechassie, m. on 22 January, 1683, Anna, daughter of Duncan Campbell, of
Edramuckie, and d. on 4 March, 1729. He was father of,
2b} James Stewart, 2™ of Killiechassie, 5. on 29 November, 1683, and obtained from his father a
disposition for the lands of Killiechassie. He m. at Logierait on 24 November, 1709, to Vere,
daughter of Captain James Menzies, of Comrie, d. on 3 May, 1718, and had issue,
2¢} Robert Stewart, 3 of Killiechassie, &. in around 1710 and served as an officer in the Atholl
Brigade of the Jacobite Army of 1745/46 and was taken prisoner but afterwards obtained a
pardon. He was served heir to his grandfather Robert Stewart, Minister of Killin, on 20 May,
1762, m. at Logierait on 21 May, 1732, to Amelia, daughter and eventual heiress of Robert
Fleming of Moness, and had issue,
2d} Robert Stewart Fleming, 4" of Killiechassie and Moness, c. at Dull on 15 April, 1734,
succeeded his father and his mother in the lands of Moness and dsp.
2d} James Stewart Fleming, 5% of Killiechassie and Moness, succeeded his brother in these
lands and had a Precept of Clare Constat as heir to his father in the lands of Killiechassie
on 19 November, 1785.* He m. at Perth on 15 June, 1773, to Janet Duncan and had
issue,
2e} Robert Stewart Fleming, of Killiechassie, ¢. at Dull on 27 January, 1783, and was
retoured heir to his father on 30 November, 1804. He sold the lands of
Killiechassie and dsp.
2e} Amelia Stewart Fleming, c. at Dull on 10 January, 1776.
2e} Margaret Stewart Fleming, c. at Dull on 20 July, 1774.
2e} Anne Stewart Fleming, c. at Dull on 21 February, 1777.
2¢} James Stewart, a posthumous child bap. at Dull on 31 August, 1718.
2c¢} Janet Stewart, m. to Duncan Robertson, 6™ of Auchleeks, (he m. secondly at Blair Atholl on 17
November, 1753, to Jean, daughter of John Campbell of Kinloch and had issue) and had issue.
2¢} Susan Stewart, c. at Dull on 14 July, 1715, and m. at Logierait on 4 November, 1743, to Robert
Robertson, in Milnton of Kindrochit.
2b} Duncan Stewart, of Blackhall, 4. on 21 March, 1688, and obtained the lands of Blackhall. He is styled
as brother to the deceased James Stewart of Killiechassie when he presented James, posthumous son
of this James, to be bap. at Dull on 31 August, 1718, and m. in 1726 to Mary, daughter of Adam
Fergusson, Minister of Logierait. He d. by November of 1749 and was father of,
2¢} Robert Stewart, to whom his father granted a Disposition for the lands of Kilmorich on 27
March, 1730.”' He dsp prior to October of 1754.
2c} Adam Stewart, 2" of Blackhall and Clunie, infeft as heir to his elder brother Robert Stewart in
the lands of Kilmorich on 18 October, 1754, attained the rank of Lieutenant in the army and
m. at Dull on 18 October, 1766, to Helen, daughter and eventual heir of John Hepburn, of
Colquhalzie, (she d. in 1837). He d. on 20 December, 1811, and was father of,
2d} Duncan Stewart, c. at Perth on 12 November, 1767, and dsp.

2)This Date of death is given in the retour of his daughter.
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2d} John Stewart, c. at Perth on 24 May, 1773, and dsp.
2d} Thomas Stewart, c. at Perth on 4 August, 1778, and dsp.
2d} Robert Stewart, c. at Dull on 9 December, 1776, and dsp.
2d} Margaret Stewart, c. at Perth on 14 September, 1769, and dsp.
2d} Mary Stewart, c. at Perth on 30 November, 1770, and dsp.
2d} Dorothy Stewart, c. at Dull on 9 December, 1776, and d. young.
2d} Helen Stewart, ¢. at Dull on 13 March, 1779, and dsp.
2d} Ann Stewart, ¢ at Dull on 3 July, 1781, and dsp.
2d} Dorothy Stewart, c. at Dull on 18 November, 1782, m. on 17 March, 1817, to James
Stewart Robertson, 4™ of Derculich, and had issue.
2¢} James Stewart, c. at Logierait on 26 November, 1736, and was admitted Minister of Dull on 12
September, 1759. He d. unmarried on 14 September, 1768.
2¢} Mary Stewart, c. at Logierait on 15 June, 1734.
2¢} Ann Stewart, m. at Dull on 4 November, 1749, Charles Stewart, of Clunymore.
2b} Alexander Stewart, 1** of Clochfoldich, 4. on 29 November, 1689, and d. by 12 August, 1749. He had
issue,
2c¢} Robert Stewart, 2™ of Colchfoldich, succeeded his father and m. at Dull on 28 February, 1756,
to Susan, daughter of Robert Fleming, 7% of Moness. He had issue,
2d} Alexander Stewart, 2" of Clochfoldich, c. at Logierait on 26 December, 1756, succeeded
his father and d. by 28 January, 1795. He had issue,
2e} Robert Stewart, 3™ of Clochfoldich, retoured heir to his father in the lands of
Clochfoldich on 28 January, 1795, and m. at New Kilpatrick on 25 July, 1803, to
Wilhemina, daughter and eventual heiress of James Goodlat Campbell, 4" of
Auchlyne, (she was retoured heir to her brother Hugh Goodlat Campbell, 5 of
Auchlyne, on 20 March, 1827). He d. on 24 April, 1833,’* and had issue,
2f} Janet Wilhemina Maxwell Stewart, b. at Edinburgh on 25 September, 1806,
and was retoured heir to her father in the lands of Colchfoldich on 19
September, 1833. She m. at Logierait on 5 April 1838, to William Bowie
Campbell, (he was b. in 1803 and was widow of Sarah Priscilla Fearnside
whom he had m. on 16 March 1830. He d. without surviving issue on 11
June, 1847) and had no issue.
2d} Robert Stewart, c. at Logierait on 30 January, 1761.
2d} James Stewart, c. at Logierait on 1 December, 1762.
2d} Susanna Stewart, c. at Logierait on 1 June, 1759.
2¢} Catherine Stewart, m. at Logierait on 12 August, 1749, to Robert Stewart, at Bridge-end of Glen
Tilt with the following being the appropriate entry “Robert Stewart in the parish of Blair and
Catherine Stewart, daughter to the deceased Alexander Stewart of Colchfoldich, proclaimed.”
2b} Robert Stewart, 1% of Derculich, 5. on 6 December, 1704, and m. to Jean, daughter of Robert
Campbell, 2™ of Auchlyne, (¢/m 24 July, 1729. She was b. in 1705 and d. on 23 February, 1788). He
d. on 22 May, 1767, and left issue,
2¢} James Stewart, 2™ of Derculich, bap. at Dull on 30 October, 1730, and m. firstly at Dull on 12
December, 1755, to his cousin Agnes, daughter of Duncan Campbell, 2™ of Auchlyne, (she d.
on 12 February, 1778,) and had issue. He m. secondly at Dull on 29 November, 1778, to
Margaret, daughter and heiress of Duncan Robertson, of Edradynate, d. prior to June of 1805
and was father of,
2d} Robert Stewart, ¢. at Dull on 7 January, 1757, and dsp.
2d} Louisa Stewart, c. at Dull on 29 September, 1761, and . at Dull on 11 November, 1786,
to Robert Cargill, Merchant in Dunkeld.
2d} Jean Stewart, c. at Dull on 12 November, 1770.
2d} Alexander Stewart, 3 of Derculich, ¢ at Dull on 22 October, 1779, succeeded his father
and m. at Dull on 8 June, 1805, Jean, daughter of Donald Stewart, of Sheirglass.” He dsp.
2d} James Stewart, 4™ of Derculich, c. at Dull on 20 March, 1783, and m. on 17 March, 1817,
to Dorothea, daughter of Adam Stewart, 2™ of Blackhall and Clunie. He succeeded to his
mother’s lands of Edradynate upon which he assumed the additional surname of
Robertson, and had issue,

32GD1/394/13. In which he is styled as youngest son of the deceased Alexander Stewart of Bonskeid.
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2e} James Stewart Robertson, 5 of Derculich and Edradynate, 4. on 15" May and c. at
Logierait on 12 June, 1823. He m. on 27 April, 1852, to Mary Jane, daughter of
Robert Cunningham of Ballanoris, (she d. on 29 April, 1866), d. on 3 August,
1896, and had issue,
2f} James Stewart Robertson, of Edradynate and Colquhalzie, 5. on 14
November, 1856, and succeeded to the lands of Colquhalzie. He m. on 11
September, 1880, to Beatrice, daughter of Thomas Murray Allan, of
Glenfeochan, (she d. on 22 January, 1946), d. on 14 February, 1940, and
had issue,
2g} Dorothy Campbell Stewart-Robertson, of Edradynate, b. on 24
August, 1891, and m. on 8 February, 1921, to Lieutenant-Colonel
Walter Loyd Sinclair Meiklejohn, (he d. on 11 October, 1963). They
had issue.
2f} Margaret Cunningham Stewart Robertson, b. on 26 April, 1855, and d.
unmarried on 4 February, 1940.
2f} Dorothea Stewart Robertson, a twin with Margaret and was b. on 26 April,
1855. She d. unmarried on 24 May, 1939.
2f} Mary Stewart Robertson, bap. at Edinburgh on 5 May, 1861, and d.
umarried on 23 November, 1933.
2f} Florence Sophia Stewart Robertson, bap. at Edinburgh on 6 August, 1864,
and d. young.
2f} Helen Stewart Robertson, bap. at Edinburgh on 10 April, 1866, and d.
unmarried on 20 July, 1945.
2e} Helen Hepburn Robertson, 4. on 3™ and c. at Logierait on 20 February, 1818.
2e} Margaret Stewart Robertson, 4. on 1* and ¢ at Logierait on 24 November, 1819.
2e} Mary Ann Stewart Robertson, c. at Logierait on 5 September, 1821.
2d} Robert Stewart, ¢. at Dull on 14 December, 1784.
2d} George Stewart, ¢ at Dull on 16 July, 1787.
2d} Adam Stewart, c. at Dull on 18 June, 1790.
2d} William Stewart, ¢. at Dull on 25 December, 1792.
2d} John Stewart, ¢ at Dull on 12 October, 1795.
2d} Hugh Goodlat Campbell Stewart, ¢. at Dull on 19 July, 1799.
2d} Walter Cargill Stewart, ¢. at Dull on 25 July, 1801.
2d} Mary Stewart, a twin with George and was c¢. at Dull on 16 July, 1787.
2¢} Margaret Stewart, bap. at Dull on 28 March, 1734.
2b} Margaret Stewart,
2b} Ann Stewart, c. at Killin on 21 April, 1697, m. to James Robertson of Killiechangie, (¢/m 19, 21 & 25
December, 1724,*) and had issue.
2b} Grizell Stewart, m. to Patrick MacArthur, of Innistrynich, (¢/m 21 August, 1723). All of the above
children are mentioned in their mother’s Testament.
2b} Beatrix Stewart, m. at Dull on 19 February, 1708, to Alexander Robertson, of Balnacraig, and had
issue.
2a} James Stewart, became a Merchant.
2a} Jean Stewart, m. to Alexander Stewart, 5" of Foss, and had no apparent issue.
2a} Dorothy Stewart, m. to Archibald MacDuff, of Ballieloan, (¢/m2 18 December, 1669,%).
2a} Margaret Stewart, m. to Robert Stewart, Tutor of Kinnaird, second son of Thomas Stewart, 3™ of Kinnaird,
and had issue.*
3. Alexander Stewart, m. Elspeth, eldest daughter of Robert Stewart, of Urquhillmor, (¢/m 20 June, 1642,”’) and was
infeft in the lands of Pitdornie on 2 September, 1666. He was father of,
3a} John Stewart, resided at the Mill of Dowally and resigned the lands of Pitdornes in favour of Marquis of
Atholl on 13 February, 1688.
4. Beatrix Stewart, m. to John Stewart, of Cammoch and 6" of Foss, and had issue.
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5. Margaret Stewart, who, with her sister Beatrix, had a Sasine from their parents for the lands of Auld Clune on 20
May, 1621.%

JoHN STEWART, 6™ OF BONSKEID, infeft as heir to his father in the lands of Bonskeid following upon a
Precept of Clare Constat by Andrew, Lord Gray, the superior on 6 November, 1630, and was retoured
heir to his father on 8 October, 1669, and to John Stewart, of Bonskeid, his grandfather, on 3 March,
1671. He m. to Dorothy, daughter of James Stewart, 1* of Ladywell, (¢/m 9 February, 1632.* She was
widow of George Cardney, of Pitcastle,) d. prior to 11 July, 1691, and was father of,

1. John Stewart, 7" of Bonskeid (see below).

2. Gilbert Stewart, of Tarvie, infeft in the lands of Pitcastle in March of 1671,* and, with his brother John Stewart of
Bonskeid, acted as executor to his father on 11 July, 1691.* He was father of,

2a} John Stewart, younger of Tarvie, who, with his father, had the lands of Tarvie apprised by John Murray of
Authurstane in 1699.*

3. Charles Stewart, entered into a contract of Wadset with Alan Stewart, of Strathgarry, and John Stewart, his eldest
son, and in terms of which he was infeft in the lands of East-Half of Strathgarry on 16 April, 1697.*

3. Elizabeth Stewart, m. to Thomas Stewart, 4" of Fondoynet, (¢/m 14 July, 1657), and had issue.

4. Janet Stewart, m. to John Rattray, in Mains of Edradour, (¢/m 7 August, 1661%).

5. Dorothy Stewart, m. to John Reid, of Edradynate,* (he was widow of Isabel, William Menzies, in Tiggernach, by
whom he had issue) and had issue.

JOHN STEWART, 7™ OF BONSKEID, succeeded his father and was witness to the contract of marriage between
Donald Robertson, younger of Eastertyre, and Anna, daughter of Alexander Stewart of Wester Clunie on
28 July, 1688. He m. to Agnes, daughter of James Ogilvy, of Muirton and Cluny, (¢/m at Dunkeld on 11
February, 1670,%) and was father of,

1. John Stewart, 8 of Bonskeid (see below).

2. James Stewart, c. at Logierait on 19 February, 1674.

3. Gilbert Stewart, bap. at Logierait on 3 August, 1676.

4. Patrick Stewart, witness to his brother Neil Stewart’s contract of marriage to Giles, eldest daughter of John
Stewart of Dalguise, on 20 April, 1710, and appointed Minister at Auchtergavin. He m. at Dunkeld in April of
1712 to Christian Allan and d on 29 November, 1753.

5. Neil Stewart, m. at Dull on 1 April, 1710, to Giles, daughter of John Stewart, 5" of Dalguise, (¢/m at Kincraigie on
20 April, 1710, with a Tocher of 1000 merks Scots™) and had issue,

5a} John Stewart, became a Merchant in Perth, and, with his brother Patrick Stewart, were witnesses to a
discharge by their father to John Stewart of Dalguise for 1000 merks in the name of Tocher with their
mother dated 18 August, 1733.%

5a} Patrick Stewart,

6. Barbara Stewart, bap. at Logierait on 20 February, 1678.

7. Dorothy Stewart, m. to Donald Stewart, eldest son and apparent heir of James Stewart, of Sheirglass, (¢/m 25
June, 1696,>?) and had issue.
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8. Agnes Stewart, m. to Alexander Robertson, fiar of Balnacraig, (¢/m 23 March, 1703. He was widow of Janet, sister
of Alexander Murray, of Solzaries, whom he had m. by ¢/m 1 July, 1687,).
8. Margaret Stewart, m. at Dull on 9 September, 1711, to John Stewart, younger of Innerslannie, and had issue.

JOHN STEWART, 8™ OF BONSKEID, succeeded his father and m. firstly in 1707 to Amelia, daughter of Charles
Stewart, of Ballechin, by whom he had issue. He m. secondly at Dull on 24 June, 1711, to Jean, daughter
of Alexander Stewart, 2™ of Cluny,*® and was father of,

1. John Stewart, younger of Bonskeid, (see below).

2. James Stewart, bap. at Dull on 20 November, 1716.

3. Anna Stewart, bap. at Dull on 29 November, 1720.

4. Isabel Stewart, a twin with Anna who was bap. at Dull on 29 November, 1720. She m. at Dull on 29 December,
1748, to Alexander Menzies, younger of Bolfracks, eldest son and heir of James Menzies of Bolfracks, and had
issue.

5. Elizabeth Stewart, m. at Blair Atholl on 8 November, 1754, to James Roberston, younger of Killiechangie.

JOHN STEWART, YOUNGER OF BONSKEID, m. at Dull on 11 October, 1725, to Isabel, daughter of John Stewart,
5% of Balnakeilly.** They both died prior to the christening of their son Charles in January of 1740 as
mentioned in the Parish Register, the child being presented by it’s grandfather John Stewart, elder of
Bonskeid.”® He was father of,

1. John Stewart, 9" of Bonskeid, (see below).

2. Patrick Stewart, served as an ensign in the army and was killed at Ticonderago during the American Wars in
1756.

3. James Stewart, c. at Blair atholl on 25 May, 1738.

4. Charles Stewart, c. at Dull on 30 January, 1740.

5. Jean Stewart,

6. Sophia Stewart, all of whom are mentioned in their fathers Testament.”® She m. at Dull on 8 August, 1756, to
Donald Stewart, of Sheirglass, and had issue.

JOHN STEWART, 9™ OF BONSKEID, bap. at Blair Atholl on 25 May, 1738, and was an infant at the time when

Bonskeid house was burned to the ground by Government troops following the failure of the Jacobite

uprising of 1746. He m. firstly to Elizabeth, daughter of Robert Stewart, 9" of Fincastle, and had issue ;

and secondly in around 1765 to Marthly Bruce. He was a much disliked man and had been known to

force his tenants into military service so that he could take the bounty money paid upon enlistment. He

was inadvertently killed by his brother-in-law Donald Stewart, of Sheirglass, while at an Inn in Moulin on

20 October, 1767,°7 and was father of,

1. Alexander Stewart, 10% of Bonskeid (see below).

2. Isabel Stewart, bap. at Dull on 16 July, 1755, m. at Dull on 5 February, 1785, to Lieutenant James Stewart, second
son of Gilbert Stewart, 11 of Fincastle, and had issue.

3. Marthly Stewart, a daughter by her father’s second marriage who was bap. at Dull on 23 April, 1766.

ALEXANDER STEWART, 10™ OF BONSKEID, acted as executor to his father and as heir of whom he was infeft in
the lands of Calziebrochan on 2 June, 1781. He qualified as a Doctor of Medicine which he practised in
Perth and is said to have been one of the first of his profession to reduce the spread of smallpox through
inoculation. He m. firstly at Dunkeld on 8 December, 1787, to Jean, daughter of Thomas Bisset,
Commissary of Dunkeld, (¢/m 27 November, 1787,) secondly in 1791 to Mary Anne, daughter of
Laurence Oliphant, 8" of Gask, (she d. at Perth on 19 June, 1819,) and was father of,

MARGARET STEWART, OF BONSKEID, c. at Perth on 10 March, 1803, and m. at Scone on 18 September, 1820,
to m. to Glas Sandeman, of Springfield, (he d. at Montpellier in 1855). They had issue,

53OPR 346. 30 January, 1740. “Charles, son to John Stewart, younger of Bonskeid, and Isabel Stewart, both deceased, John Stewart, elder of
Bonskeid, brought furth the child.” A fire is said to have consumed Bonskeid House around this time and it may be that their deaths which
occurred so close together may be assigned to this.

3*Dunkeld Tests. Alexander Stewart in Bunrannoch acted as executor.
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1. Alexander Stewart Sandeman, of Bonskeid, ¢. at Perth on 27 September, 1824, m. to Caroline Bourgeois, d. in

1854 and was father of,
la} David George Sandeman, b. in 1852.
la} Alexander Stewart Sandeman, b. in 1853.
la} Elizabeth Caroline Sandeman, b. in 1855

2. David George Augustus Sandeman, c. at Perth on 31 May, 1826, became a Minister in the English Presbytarian
Church and a Missionary in China and d. in 1858.

3. Frederick Sandeman, c. at Perth on 15 October, 1827, and m. at Southampton on 16 April, 1863, to Katherine
Charlotte, daughter of Alexander Wollaston. He was father of,

3a} Susan Sandeman,

3a} Katharina Sandeman,
3a} Georgie Sandeman,
3a} Louisa Sandeman,
3a} Elise Sandeman,

4. Hugh Sandeman, c. at Perth on 13 August, 1830, and d. in 1854.

. Charles Sandeman, c. at Perth on 9 November, 1836.

6. Francis Sandeman, c. at Perth on 28 November, 1838, and m. at Perth on 18 December, 1860, to Laura, daughter
of James Condie. He had issue,

6a} James Condie Stewart Sandeman, b. at Dundee on 24 November, 1866, and m. in 1891 to Sarah Rhynd.
6a} Frank Stewart Sandeman, b. in 1863.

6a} Frederick David Stewart Sandeman, b. at Dundee on 31 August, 1868.

6a} George Edgar Stewart Sandeman, b. at Dundee on 7 January, 1870.

6a} Douglas Charles Stewart Sandeman, b. at Dundee on 1 October, 1871.

6a} William Stewart Sandeman, b. at Dundee on 12 July, 1873.

6a} Alexander Nairn Sandeman, b. in 1876.

6a} Laura Stewart Sandeman, b. in 1862.

6a} Margaret Stewart Sandeman, b. at Perth on 7 May, 1865, and m. in 1890 to Rev. James Ewing Somerville.
6a} Mary Stewart Sandeman, b. in 1881.

7. Marjory Ann Sandeman, c. at Perth on 18 January, 1822, and d. in 1822.

8. Margaret Fraser Sandeman, c. at Perth on 15 April, 1823, and m. at Perth on 24 April, 1845, to George Freeland
Barbour, son of Humphrey Barbour, of Kilbarchan, (he was 4. in 1810 and d. at Edinburgh in January of 1887)
who afterwards purchased the estate of Bonskeid in 1857. They had issue,

8a} Frederick Glas Sandeman Barbour, b. on 28 February, 1847, and d. in a train accident near Manchester on 4
March, 1853.
8a} George Freeland Barbour, b. on 7 September, 1848, and was killed with his brother Frederick in a train
accident on 4 March, 1853.
8a} Robert William Barbour, of Bonskeid and Fincastle, 5. on 29 November, 1854, and m. at Corsham,
Wiltshire, on 25 September, 1879, to Charlotte Rachel, daughter of Sir Robert Nicholas Fowler, Lord
Mayor of London. He d. at Montpellier, France, on 27 May, 1891, and was father of,
8b} George Freeland Barbour, of Bonskeid and Fincastle, 5. on 15 February, 1882, and succeeded his
father in these lands. He m. on 3 January, 1919, to Helen Victoria, daughter of Walter George
Hepburn-Scott, 9" Lord Polwarth, d. on 18 November, 1946, and was father of,
8c} Robert Alexander Stewart Barbour, of Bonskeid and Fincastle, . on 11 May, 1921, and
succeeded his father. He sold Bonskeid House to the YMCA in 1951, m. in 1950 to Margaret
Isobel Pigot and has issue.
8b} Charlotte Mary Barbour, b. on 3 July, 1885.
8a} Alexander Hugh Barbour, b. on 7 January, 1856.
8a} Margaret Stewart Barbour, ¢ at Edinburgh on 16 August, 1852.
8a} Jane Elizabeth Barbour, b. on 13 March, 1861, and . in 1881 to Rev. Alexander White.
9. Anna Sandeman, c. at Perth on 24 January, 1835, and d. in infancy.
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- STEWART OF FINCASTILE -

ORIGIN. The Stewarts of Fincastle are said to be descended from David Stewart, second son of Neil Stewart, 2"
of Fortingall and Garth, who was witness to an Instrument of Sasine following upon a Precept from the Chancery



for the lands

of Easter and Wester Duntallich in favour of John Stewart, Earl of Atholl, on 28 March, 1474.%® He is

said to have been father of,

JoHN STEWART, who is said to have been father of,*

1. Robert Stewart, 1°* of Fincastle (see below).
2. Alexander Stewart, of Foss, (see Stewart of Foss).
3. John Stewart, who was ancestor of,

3a} Neil

Stewart, of Innerkynnachan, who m. firstly to Elspeth Murray with whom he had a charter for the

lands of Bohally and Pitkerrill from Sir Alexander Menzies, of that Ilk, on 13 November, 1600, and had
issue ; and secondly to Janet Moncur by whom he had issue. He was father of,

3b

3b

} John Stewart, of Innerkynnchan, m. to Barbara, daughter of John Stewart of Granich, and to whom
his father granted the lands of Bohally and Pitkerrill, on 27 November, 1616.°' He had a charter from
his father for the lands of Innerkynnachan and Pitkerrill on 13 September, 1621,% and was father of,

3¢} Neil Stewart, of Innerkynnachan, succeeded his father, d. in 1661 and had issue,
3d} John Stewart, of Innerkynnachan, succeeded his father and had issue,
3e} James Stewart, of Innerkynnachan, succeeded his father and sold his lands of
Innerkynnachan to Stewart of Ballechin. He was father of,
3f} Robert Stewart, who was father of,
3g} Alexander Stewart, of Easter Kinnaird, became a teacher of music in
Edinburgh and purchased the lands of Over Kinnaird and Mains of
Kinnaird from Thomas Stewart, of Kinnaird on 21 April, 1735.° He m.
at Edinburgh on 23 March, 1740, to Barbara, daughter and coheiress of
William Mercer, Writer in Edinburgh.
3g} John Stewart, resided in Croftinloan and acted as bailie to his brother
Alexander Stewart at his purchase of the lands of Easter Kinnaird. He
served as a Captain in the Atholl Brigade during the Jacobite uprising
of 1745/6 and deserted the army in February of 1746.

} James Stewart, of Arditie, obtained the lands of Arditie from John Maxtone, of Arditie, and in which
he was infeft on 9 November, 1639,* and with his brother John Stewart of Innerkynnachan,
disponed the lands of Drummacoille to their half-brother Alexander Stewart on 6 July, 1653.°° He m.
to Janet Campbell whom he infeft in a liferent of the lands of Arditie on 14 November, 1639, and
was father of,

3¢} Neil Stewart, of Campsie, who, with his father, gave consent to the disponing of the lands of
Drummacoille to his uncle Alexander Stewart in 1653. He m. in around 1640 to Anna,
daughter of David Murray, of Buchanty, (she m. secondly by ¢/m 2 September, 1662, to Patrick
Comrie, of Ross, and d. in 1679), d. 1662 and was father of,
3d} Donald Stewart, of Campsie, succeeded his father and had issue,
3e} John Stewart, of Campsie, infeft as heir to his father in the lands of Campsie in
November of 1707.%¢
3¢} William Stewart, of Cassoquhey and Arditie, had an Instrument of Sasine for the lands of
Arditie from his father on 10 July, 1669, and m. to Grissell, daughter of John Ireland, of
Milnholl, (¢/m 10 July, 1669,%). He disponed his lands of Cassoquhey and Arditie to Patrick
Smith of Braco in the which the latter was infeft on 10 July, 1680,* and was father of,
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3d} Gilbert Stewart, of Arditie, disponed the remainder of his estate to Smythe of Methven
and m. to Mary Maxwell, (¢/m 24 April, 1703.7° She was widow of James MacGruther,
younger of Meggar, ).
3d} William Stewart, who, with his brother Gilbert Stewart, of Arditie, was put to the horn
for non-payment of a debt due to Alexander Campbell, of Torrich, on 22 May, 1723.
3¢} Charles Stewart, had a Tack of the lands of Ducharan from John, Marquis of Atholl, on 12
May, 1677, and seems to be identical with the Charles Stewart in Pitkerrill who m. to Cecil,
daughter of Colin Campbell, Minister of Blair Atholl, (¢/m 22 April, 1670,).
3¢} Jean Stewart, m. to Alexander Stewart, of Ballintuim, (¢/zn 6 February, 1679,7).
3b} Alexander Stewart, a son by his father’s marriage to Janet Moncur, who m. to Margaret Reidheugh
and to whom his half-brother’s granted the lands of Drummacoille on 6 July, 1653.7
3b} Margaret Stewart, m. by 9 December, 1628, to John Stewart, of Duntaullich, when they were infeft by
William Stewart of Duntaulich, his father, in the lands of Cuthill and half ofDalmunzie,”* and had
issue.

ROBERT STEWART, 17 OF FINCASTLE, obtained these lands, m. to Agnes Gray and by whom he was father of,
1. James Stewart, 2" of Fincastle, (see below).

2. John Stewart, ancestor of the Stewarts of Urrard, (see Stewart of Urrard).

3. Malcolm Stewart, from whom the Stewarts of Sheirglass descend, (see Stewart of Sheirglass).

4. Neil Stewart, 1** of Tulloch, obtained the lands of Tulloch and had issue. (see Stewart of Tulloch).

JAMES STEWART, 2> OF FINCASTLE, witness to an Instrument of Sasine for all and whole of the Earldom of
Atholl in favour of John Stewart, Earl of Atholl, on 28 September, 1579, succeeded his father in these
lands and d. on 15 April, 1590. He had issue,

1. John Stewart, 3 of Fincastle, (see below).

2. Alexander Stewart, had the gift of the prebend of Inchmagranoch in 1556 and is styled as son of James Stewart of
Fincastle in a Procuratory by John Tarlochson of Monzie showing the feu charters the latter had to the his lands
on 28 January, 1581.7

3. Janet Stewart, m. to James Stewart, 3" of Bonskeid, and had issue.

JoHN STEWART, OF TULLIEPOWRIE AND FINCASTLE, styled as brother to Alexander Stewart, Prebender of

Inchmagranoch, on 3 December, 1565,” and acted as cautioner to Alexander Stewart, of Carse, Thomas

Stewart of Grantully, George Stewart, of Arntully, Alexander Stewart of Glenns, Neil MacWilliam Stewart,

in Fortingall, Alexander Stewart, of Dalguise, Thomas Stewart, in Dowallie, that they should not harm

Andrew Anderson in Ladywell on 2 March, 1581.” He m. to Margaret Carwood with whom he redeemed

the lands of Ladywell from John, Earl of Atholl, on 20 April, 1590, and is then styled as “John Stewart

Jameson of Tulliepowrie.*”” He d. by 1600 and had issue,

1. Robert Stewart, 4™ of Fincastle, (see below).

2. James Stewart, 1% of Ladywell, appointed to the office of Commissary of Dunkeld and had a charter for the lands
of Ladywell under the Great Seal 10 December, 1598, which had been resigned in his favour by his parents. He m.
to Margaret, daughter of Dr. Gilbert Moncreift, of Myreside, d. on 20 March, 1650,% and was father of,
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2a} John Stewart, fiar of Ladywell, who was beheaded at Edinburgh on 28 July, 1641, for having accussed the
Earl of Argyll and other Covenanters of holding a meeting at the Point of Lyon to dispossess King Charles I.
He m. to Anne Clerk and had issue,
2b} Thomas Stewart, 2™ of Ladywell, succeeded his father and married firstly to Margaret, daughter of
John Graham, 3™ of Balgowan, (¢/m 25 and 26 January, 1660, with her Tocher being £3000%2). He
m. secondly after February of 1676, to Jean, daughter of David Drummond, 2™ of Innermay, (she
was widow of William Oliphant, of Culteucher, by whom she had issue). He d. in March of 1689*
and was father of,
2¢} John Stewart, 3™ of Ladywell, a child by his father’s first marriage and to whom he acted as
executor following his death in 1689. He was retoured heir to his father on 14 July, 1693, m. at
Kilspindie on 8 April, 1691, to Helen, daughter and co-heiress of William Lindsay, of
Kilspindie, (¢/m 1 April, 1691.% She was ¢ at Kilspindie on 12 March, 1670, and was retoured
heir to her grandfather William Beaton, brother german of David Beaton of Creich, on 28
September, 1699,) and dsp prior to October of 1713.
2¢} Elizabeth Stewart, styled as daughter of Thomas of Ladywell in a Sasine dated 1699.
2¢} Amelia Stewart, a daughter by her father’s second marriage who m. to John MacEwen, Writer
in Dunkeld. She was infeft in her half-brother John Stewart’s estate as his heir on 27 October,
1713.® They had issue.
2b} Jane Stewart, m. firstly to Sir Ludovick Gordon, of Gordonston, and secondly to Robert Naesmyth,
of Posso, (he m. secondly to Janet, daughter of Sir William Murray, of Stanhope).
2a} William Stewart, infeft in the Brewlands of Dunkeld following upon a resignation in his favour by James
Stewart of Ladywell, his father, on 7 January, 1618, and is then styled as his second son.* He apparently dsp
prior to 23 October, 1652, when his brother Sir Gilbert Stewart was infeft in his lands.
2a} Sir Gilbert Stewart, of Polcack, styled son of James Stewart of Ladywell in a horning raised by himself
against Thomas Campbell on 14 March, 1631. He was a loyal supporter of the Royalist cause and was
knighted by King Charles II. following his restitution in 1660. He d. prior to October of 1680 and was
father of,
2b} John Stewart, of Tullieneadies, obtained these lands and m. to Jean, daughter of John Campbell, 4*
Baronet of Glenorchy, (¢/m 9 June, 1666,*) and to which couple was granted a Charter by his father
for the lands of Polcack on 9 June, 1666, in which he is styled as eldest son. He was father of,
2¢} Gilbert Stewart, of Polcack, who dsp prior to 30 June, 1693, when his cousin Patrick Stewart of
Rotmell was retoured his heir.
2b} Charles Stewart, of Rotmell, appointed Commissary of Dunkeld and acted as bailie to his father in an
Instrument of Sasine in favour of his father for the lands of Rotmell on 15 July, 1671.* He m. to
Euphemia Lindsay, d. in September of 1687% and was father of,
2¢} Patrick Stewart, of Rotmell, served heir to his father on 30 June, 1693, and on the same day to
his uncle John Stewart of Tullieneadies and his cousin Gilbert Stewart, son of John Stewart of
Tullieneadies in the lands of Polcack. He sold the lands of Rotmell to Henry Balneaves in June
of 1702, m. to Elizabeth, daughter of William Stewart, of Balleid, (¢/m at Newton on 26
October, 1704,”) and dsp on 5 February, 1707.”!
2¢} Charles Stewart, who, with his brother William Stewart, and sisters Helen and Amelia Stewart,
acted as executor to his brother Patrick Stewart to whom he was retoured heir in the lands of
Grange of Aberbothrie on 28 January, 1708.
2¢} William Stewart,
2¢} Thomas Stewart, bap. at Dunkeld on 13 June, 1688.
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2c} Helen Stewart, m. firstly to Alexander Stewart, 5" of Findoynet, (¢/m 27 January, 1702,%?) and
secondly to Charles Stewart, of Inchgarth, younger son to Patrick Stewart, 3™ of Drumcharry,
and had issue by both husbands.
2¢} Amelia Stewart, bap. at Dunkeld on 2 October, 1687.
2b} Gilbert Stewart, became a Clerk in Dunkeld and was father of,
2¢} Thomas Stewart, bap. at Dunkeld on 13 January, 1688.
2b} Marjory Stewart, m. to William Nairne, Minister at Kinclaven, (he d. prior to 8 September, 1687,
aged about 43 years) and had issue.
2a} Thomas Stewart, infeft with his parents in the Manse of Forgandenny on 19 July, 1625, and is then styled as
their fourth son.”
2a} Jean Stewart, m. to Neil Stewart, 4" of Foss, (he m. secondly to Grissel, daughter to Farquharson of
Invercauld) and had issue.
2a} Margaret Stewart, m. to Thomas Menzies, of Tiggernach, and is styled as her relict in a renunciation by
James Stewart, of Ladywell, on 31 May, 1642.*
2a} Isobel Stewart, m. firstly to John Stewart, 1* of Fungorth and Balleid, (¢/m 11 September, 1638,%) and
secondly at Blairgowrie on 14 January, 1655, to John Blair, 8" of Ardblair, and had issue by both husbands.
2a} Marjory Stewart, m. to Alexander Rollo, Minister of the West Church in Perth, and had issue.
2a} Grissell Stewart,
2a} Dorothy Stewart, who, with her sister Grissell, are mentioned in connection with annualrents due from the
lands of Myreside. She m. to John Stewart, of Bonskeid, (¢/in 9 February, 1632,) and she had issue.
2a} Anna Stewart, m. to James Moncur, of Little Gourdie, (¢/m 18 July, 1625,%).
2a] Elspeth Stewart, m. to John Stewart, of Killiechassie, brother of Robert Stewart, of Ballechin, and by whom
she was infeft in the liferent of the lands of Killiechassie in implementation of their contract of marriage on
28 April, 1630.”” They had issue.

. John Stewart, styled as third son of the deceased John Stewart of Tulliepowries and Margaret Cairwood on 27
October, 1606.” He m. to Margaret Spense with whom he was infeft by his brother James Stewart, Commissary
of Dunkeld, in his tenement in Dunkeld on 30 June, 1599, which he afterwards disponed to Thomas Crichton of
Polcalk on 30 October, 1600.%

. Hugh Stewart, who, with his brother James Stewart, Commissary of Dunkeld, became Bound not to harm

Margaret Carwood, relict of John Stewart of Tulliepowries in 1600.'®

Margaret Stewart, m. to Robert Marshall, of Over Pitcairns,

. Grissell Stewart, m. to George Naysmith, in Dunkeld.'®

191 and had issue.

RoBERT STEWART, 4™ OF FINCASTLE, who was put to the horn by the Privy Council for aiding in the
abduction of Rachel Bonar, daughter of Bonar of Rossie, by John Stewart, brother of Sir James Stewart of
Ballechin, in 1605 and was retoured heir to his father in an annualrent to be uplifted from the Barony of
Fowlis on 11 December, 1619. He m. in 1589 to Margaret, daughter of Patrick Stewart, of Ballechin, d.
between October of 1621 and 5 January, 1627, and was father of,

1. James Stewart, 5" of Fincastle, (see below).
2. John Stewart, granted a Tack of the lands of Dundavie to John Stewart alias MacAllister in Tulloch on 8 June,

1642, and is then styled as brother of James Stewart of Fincastle.'”> He is styled as heir to his brother in 1649, is

said to have m. to a daughter of Stewart of Findoynet and was father of,

2a} Robert Stewart, 6™ of Fincastle (see below).
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2a} Patrick Stewart, in Ardkincoall who was father of,
2b} Robert Stewart, of Culdauff, m. to Elspeth, daughter of William Stewart, of Drumcharry, and
granted a discharge for Tocher to his father-in-law on 29 April, 1682, in which he is styled as son to
Patrick Stewart in Ardkincoall.'® He was father of,
2¢} John Stewart, m. to Barbara, sister of Alexander Robertson, of Drumachuine, and with whom
he was infeft in the wadset of the lands of Ardkincall by his father on 5 March, 1713.'%
2¢} Alexander Stewart, to whom his father disponed his lands of Glacnaneid on 18 August, 1732,
and is then styled as his second son.'* He was father of,
2d} Charles Stewart, served as an Adjutant in the Atholl Brigade of the Jacobite army during
the uprising of 1745/6 and was infeft as heir to his father in the lands of Glacnaneid on
21 October, 1754.'7
2b} Gilbert Stewart, witness to his brother Robert’s discharge for Tocher to William Stewart of
Drumcharry on 29 April, 1682.
3. Alexander Stewart, included with his father in a bond of caution by Alexander Stewart of Bonskeid on 8 October,
1621.
4. Christian Stewart, m. to Adam Reid, 2™ of Eastertyre, and had issue.

JAMES STEWART, 5™ OF FINCASTLE, infeft in the fee of the lands of Fincastle as heir to his father on 2 July,
1618, and whom he succeeded by 5 January, 1627,'® when he granted a discharge in favour of Jean,
daughter of deceased Alexander Boyd, of Little Dunkeld, for the sum of 600 merks.'” He m. to Cecil,
daughter of Laurence Mercer, of Meikleour, d. by February of 1666 and was father of,

1. John Stewart, fiar of Fincastle, k&sp during the civil wars.

2. Helen Stewart, m. to her cousin Robert Stewart, 6™ of Fincastle, (see below).

3. Jean Stewart, m. firstly to Colin Campbell, Minister at Killin, and younger son of Archibald Campbell, 1% of
Lagvinsheoch and Monzie, (¢/m 8 and 19 December, 1648), by whom she had issue. She m. secondly to John
Stewart, 5 of Urrard, (¢/m 1 November, 1678. He was widow of Barbara, daughter of Alexander Menzies, 1% of
Rotmell, by whom he had issue).

4. Margaret Stewart, m. by 13 February, 1666, to Alexander Moone when they are mentioned in an assignation by
her mother.

ROBERT STEWART, 6™ OF FINCASTLE, succeeded his uncle in these lands for which he had an Instrument of
Sasine on 27 March, 1685. He m. to Helen, daughter and heiress of his uncle James Stewart, 5" of
Fincastle, and was father of,

1. Gilbert Stewart, 7" of Fincastle, (see below).
2. Robert Stewart, who was father of,
2a} Patrick Stewart, acted as bailie in a Sasine for the lands of Strathgarry in favour of Alexander Stewart as heir
to his father Rev. Duncan Stewart, Minister of Blair Atholl, on 12 February, 1713, and is then styled as son
of Robert Stewart, brother of Fincastle.'"
3. Cecilia Stewart, m. in 1677 to John Robertson, 2*¢ of Drumachuine, and was infeft in a liferent of the lands of
Drumachuine by her husband on 18 October, 1701,'! and had issue.

GILBERT STEWART, 8™ OF FINCASTLE, witness to the retour of Inquest of Margaret Fergusson, as nearest
agnate on their mother’s side to the children of the deceased John Fergusson, of Pitfourie, on 18
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December, 1695.""2 He m. to Isabel, daughter of Rev Robert Campbell, Minister at Blair Atholl, (¢/m in
February of 1701'%) and was the father of,

1. Robert Stewart, 9" of Fincastle, (' see below ).

2. Patrick Stewart, acted as bailie to a Sasine in favour of John Stewart, son of Robert Stewart, for the lands of
Ardkincall on 5 March, 1713, and is then styled as second son of Gilbert Stewart of Fincastle.""* He is said to have
emigrated to America and became a surgeon in Maryland.

3. William Stewart, m. at Dull on 4 December, 1738, Isabel, daughter of Alexander Robertson, of Downie, and d.
prior to the birth of his child in September of 1739 at which baptism he is described as son to Gilbert Stewart, of
Fincastle. He was father of,

3a} Margaret Stewart, bap. at Dull on 11 September, 1739.
3. Donald Stewart, a natural son who m. at Dull on 23 March, 1714, to Janet Stewart.

ROBERT STEWART, 9™ OF FINCASTLE, succeeded his father and m. at Dull on 1 March, 1720, to Margaret,
daughter of Henry Balneavis, 1 of Edderadour. He was father of,

1. HENRY STEWART, 10™ OF FINCASTLE, c. at Dull on 30 July, 1720, and served as a Captain in the Atholl Brigade of the
Jacobite army of 1745. He m. at Dull on 5 February, 1754, to Charlotte, daughter and coheiress of William
Mercer, Writer in Edinburgh, and d. prior to 1770. He was father of,

la} James Stewart, bap. at Dull on 25 December, 1756, and dsp.
la} Donald Stewart, a natural son by Janet MacIntosh who was bap. at Dull on 27 May, 1752.

. Gilbert Stewart, 11™ of Fincastle, (see below).

. Patrick Stewart, c. at Dull on 31 July, 1731.

. Elizabeth Stewart, m. to John Stewart, 10" of Bonskeid, and had issue.

. Isabel Stewart, m. at Dull on 20 February, 1743, to Alexander Rattray, of Tullichcurran, and had issue.

. Jean Stewart, ¢. at Dull on 28 July, 1733, m. at Dull on 20 February, 1753, to John Stewart, 9" of Foss, and had
issue.

AN U1 W

GILBERT STEWART, 11™ OF FINCASTLE, ¢. at Dull on 6 January, 1721, and resided firstly at Little Milton of
Fincastle until succeeding his brother Henry in the lands of Fincastle to whom he was eventually retoured
heir on 28 November, 1803. He m. firstly at Dull on 14 June, 1755, to Susan, daughter of James Menzies,
in Mailler, by whom he had issue ; and secondly at Blair Atholl on 25 January, 1770, to Cecilia, eldest
daughter of Rev. Alexander Stewart, of Strathgarry and Minister at Blair Atholl. He was father of,

1. Robert Stewart, 12™ of Fincastle (see below).

2. Harry Stewart, bap. at Dull on 3 November, 1761.

3. James Stewart, attained the rank of Captain in the army and resided firstly at Allein and afterwards at Kinvead.
He was nominated one of the Trustees and heirs substitute to his brother Robert Stewart of Fincastle in 1822, m.
at Dull on 5 February, 1785, to Isabel, daughter of John Stewart, 10" of Bonskeid, and was father of,

3a} Gilbert Stewart, c. at Dull on 12 August, 1786, attained the rank of Captain in the 61* Regiment of Foot,
and thereafter resided at Allein and afterwards Portnellan. He m. at Dull on 18 December, 1819, to Jane
Mary, daughter of Joseph Stewart, 11" of Foss, (¢/m 21 December, 1819,'") d. at Portnellan on 13
November, 1829,''¢ and had issue,
3b} James Stewart, c. at Dull on 14 October, 1821.
3b} Elizabeth MacKenzie Stewart, ¢. at Dull on 18 August, 1823.
3a} John Stewart, c. at Dull on 19 June, 1788.
3a} Alexander Stewart, c. at Dull on 17 March, 1790.
3a} Margaret Stewart,

4. Patrick Gilbert Stewart, bap. at Dull on 5 March, 1777, became a Merchant and Provost of Perth and was
nominated one of the Trustees and heirs substitute of his brother Robert Stewart of Fincastle in 1822. He m. at
Perth on 22 November, 1813, to Margaret Robertson, and had issue,

4a} Gilbert Stewart, b. on 7 and was c. at Perth on 26 October, 1815, and d. unmarried at Perth on 26 March,
1861.'"7
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4a} Laurence Robertson Stewart, b. on 1% and was ¢ at Perth on 24 November, 1817, was executor to his
brother Gilbert on his death in 1861 and is then stated as residing in London.

5. Alexander Stewart, bap. at Dull on 6 September, 1780.

6. Margaret Stewart, bap. at Dull on 9 November, 1770.

7. Cecilia Stewart, m. at Dull on 8 June, 1805, to Alexander Robertson, of Strowan, (he was widow of Mary,
daughter of William Best, whom he had m. on 3 August, 1765, and had issue ; and d. on 20 March, 1820,) and
had issue.

8. Isabella Stewart, ¢. at Dull on 22 April, 1778.

9. Elizabeth Stewart, d. unmarried.

ROBERT STEWART, 12™ OF FINCASTLE, bap. at Dull on 17 December, 1756, was served heir to his maternal

grandfather James Menzies, in Mailler, and Susan Menzies, his mother, on 16 February, 1770, and

attained the rank of Lieutenant-Colonel in the army. He m. at Dull on 18 November, 1792, to Louisa

Henrietta, daughter of Patrick Graham, 8" of Inchbraikie, d. on 24 March, 1822,''8 and was father of,

1. GILBERT STEWART, 13™ OF FINCASTLE, . on 14 September, 1793, was served heir to his grandfather Gilbert, of
Fincastle on 13 October, 1823, and in whose time the lands of Fincastle were sold.

2. Patrick Stewart, bap. at Dull on 30 June, 1797, and is alluded to in a trust Settlement upon his mother and elder
brother Gilbert Stewart in 1822.'"

3. Margaret Mary Stewart, bap. at Dull on 14 January, 1795, and d. young.

4. Susan Anne Jean Stewart, ¢. at Dull on 30 March, 1796, and m. at Dull on 22 November, 1818, to Duncan
Robertson, of Friendsby, Jamaica. They had issue.

- STEWART OF URRARD -

ORIGIN. The Stewarts of Urrard are said to be descended from John Stewart, second son of Robert Stewart, 1% of
Fincastle, although no proof of this has yet been located. He is said to have m. to a daughter of MacGregor of
Glenstrae and was father of,

ROBERT STEWART, . in around 1560 to a daughter of Alexander Robertson, 1% of Faskally and was father
of,

1. Alexander Stewart, of Urrard, (see below).
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2. Neil Stewart, of Urrardbeg, m. to Christine Stewart and with whom he was infeft in the lands of Urrardbeg on 4
March, 1621, and is then styled as Neil Stewart MacRobert."*® He m. Firstly to a whom whose name has not been
ascertained ; and secondly to Christian Stewart. He was father of,

2a} Donald Stewart, infeft by his father in the lands of Croftcrombie on 7 January, 1621, and is then styled as
his second son.'*

2a} John Stewart, m. to Margaret, eldest daughter of Thomas MacDuff, of Craigillo, (¢/zm2 in July of 1647'**) and
is then styled as eldest son of his father’s second marriage to Christian Stewart.

2a} Neil Stewart, acted as bailie to his brother John Stewart in his contract of marriage in 1647/

ALEXANDER STEWART, OF URRARD, 2. in around 1590 to Christina, only daughter and heiress of George
Leslie, of Rinrorie, (she d. in around 1628'?*), with whom he obtained these lands and had a charter from
William Moray, Master of Tulliebardine, for the lands of Urrardbeg, with the croft called Stoddartscrofi,
the eastern middle-part of the lands of Ballievoane, and the lands of Easter and Middle Clunie on 21
January, 1613.'* He d. in 1641'* and was father of,

1. Robert Stewart, of Urrard, (see below).

2. Neil Stewart, m. to Isobel, eldest sister of Alexander Stewart, of Easter Straloch, (¢/m 7 July, 1629).'%¢

3. John Stewart, had a Tack of the lands of Dundavie from John Stewart, brother of James Stewart, of Fincastle, for
the term of five years on 8 June, 1642, and m. to Christian, daughter of Alexander Robertson, of Tennandrie,
(¢/m 28 January, 1631'%7).

4. George Stewart, styled as brother of Robert Stewart, of Urrard, when witness to the contract of marriage between
John Robertson, fiar of Pitagown, and Grissell, daughter of Alexander Robertson, of Wester Straloch, on 7
January, 1647.'%

RoBERT STEWART, OF URRARD, witness to a contract of alienation by Fergus Fergusson of Balledmond on 20
May, 1631,'” m. to Christine, daughter of Charles Robertson, of Auchleeks, (¢/m 10 May, 1620,"°) and
was father of,

1. John Stewart, of Urrard, (see below).

2. Neil Stewart, m. Janet, eldest daughter of John Robertson, in Dalcairnich, (¢/m 2 March, 1658,"").

3. Elspeth Stewart, m. Alexander Stewart, youngest son of Alexander Stewart, of Bonskeid, (¢/m 20 June, 1642"2).

4. Christian Stewart, . to James Robertson, brother of John Robertson, of Easter Straloch, (¢/m 17 July, 1649'%).

5. Margaret Stewart, m. Charles Robertson, brother of Leonard Robertson, of Wester Straloch, (¢/m 6 February,
1655,"**) and had issue.

JoHN STEWART, OF URRARD, succeeded his father and m. firstly to Barbara, eldest daughter of Alexander
Menzies, 1 of Rotmell, (¢/rm 3 January, 1652'**) and had issue. He m. secondly to Jean, daughter to James
Stewart, 5% of Fincastle (¢/m 1 November, 1678.%¢ She was widow of Rev. Colin Campbell by whom she
had issue), d. by November of 1695 and had issue,
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1. James Stewart, of Urrard, (see below).

2. Alexander Stewart, had a Tack of the lands of Balnagrew from John Robertson of Lude for three years on 7
February, 1702,"7 and had a Tack for the lands of Mill of Kindrochit from John Robertson of Lude on 16
December, 1704.'%

3. Charles Stewart, apprenticed to John Glas, Dean of Guild of Perth, on 19 February, 1680, and became a
successful Merchant in Perth. He m. to Elizabeth Craigie and had issue,

3a} Barbara Stewart, m. at Perth on 30 October, 1719, to Robert Craigie, 1** of Glendoick and Lord Advocate,
(he d on 10 March, 1760) and d. on 25 March, 1766. They had issue.
4. Samuel Stewart, became a Surgeon Apothecary in Dundee, m. at Dundee on 26 April, 1699, to Catherine, second
daughter of John Scrimgeour, of Kirkton, (¢/m 6 April, 1699,'*°) and had issue,
4a} Jean Stewart, c. at Dundee on 31 March, 1702.
4a} John Stewart, ¢. at Dundee on 3 February, 1700.
4a} Katherine Stewart, ¢. at Dundee on 16 September, 1708.
4a} James Stewart, ¢. at Dundee on 25 September, 1715.
4a} Charles Stewart, ¢. at Dundee on 18 June, 1704.
4a} Samuel Stewart, of Culteuchar, c. at Dundee on 18 June, 1704, obtained the lands of Culteuchar and m. at
Perth on 29 July, 1727, to Cecilia, daughter of John Tenant. He had issue,
4b} John Stewart, bap. at Perth on 13 March, 1732.
4b} Samuel Stewart, b. on 7 January, 1741, and dsp in 1776.
4b} Janet Stewart, bap. at Perth on 3 September, 1728.

JAMES STEWART, OF URRARD, witness to the Testament of Alexander Stewart of Orchillbeg on 25 November,
1695, and m. at Coupar Angus on 27 February, 1685, to Anne, eldest daughter of Alexander Campbell, 3™
of Balgirsho, (¢/m 11 February, 1685'""). He was party to his son John Stewart, younger of Urrard’s
contract of marriage with Susanna Campbell, in 1724, d. soon afterwards and was father of,

1. Alexander Stewart, bap. at Coupar Angus on 20 January, 1686, and d. Young.

2. John Stewart, of Urrard, (see below).

3. Christian Stewart, . to Mungo Campbell, of Cluniemor and afterwards of Monzie, (¢/in 31 March, 1719,'*?) and
had issue.

4. Barbara Stewart, m. to John Hamilton, Minister of Kenmore, (he d. in January of 1742) and had issue.

5. Agnes Stewart, m. William Small, younger of Kindrogan, (¢/m 24 February, 1732'%).

JoHN STEWART, OF URRARD, succeeded his father and m. to Susannah, youngest daughter of Lord Neil
Campbell, younger son to Archibald Campbell, 1** Marquis of Argyll, (¢/m 24 October, 1724.** She d.
in 1740 aged 30 years '*°). He had issue,

1. James Stewart, of Urrard, (see below).
2. Neil Stewart, ¢. at Moulin on 5 April, 1727.
3. Robert Stewart, ¢. at Moulin on 8 July, 1728, and had a natural daughter by Jean Menzies, servant at Urrard,
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3a} Christian Stewart, bap. at Logierait on 12 March, 1747.

JamEes STEWART, OF URRARD, succeeeded his father, attained the rank of Captain in the army and served in
the first American Wars during which he was wounded at Ticonderoga on 8 July, 1758. He m. firstly at
Moulin on 13 January, 1752, to Ann, second daughter of Alexander Robertson, of Faskally, (she d. by 8
April, 1755,¢) by whom he had no issue ; and secondly at Moulin on 6 February, 1766, to Elizabeth,
daughter of John Robertson, of Tullybelton, (¢/m 10 February, 1766,'”) and d. by 14 September, 1782. He
was father of,

1. John Stewart, of Urrard, had an Instrument of Sasine as heir to his father in the lands of Reinaculloch on 21 May,
1783, and dsp.

2. Neil Stewart, c. at Moulin on 12 March, 1774, and dsp at Tobago on 13 January, 1808.

3. Elizabeth Stewart, ¢ at 14 February, 1767, m. at Perth on 20 February, 1787, to James Richardson, of Pitfour, (he
d. on 26 July, 1823,) and had issue.

4. Susan Stewart, ¢. at Moulin on 15 January. 1776, and dsp.

5. Christian Craigie Stewart, ¢. at Moulin on 10 July, 1777, m. at Edinburgh on 21 April, 1821, to James Hay, of
Seggieden, (he was widow of Margaret, daughter of John Richardson, of Pitfour, whom he had m. on 10 August,
1801, and who had d. on 14 March, 1819, and by whom he had issue) and dsp.

6. Charlotte Stewart, of Urrard, ¢. at Moulin on 12 August, 1780, and . at Moulin on 11 November, 1803, to
Major James Alston, (he d. on 8 October, 1832, aged 70). She d. on 2 September, 1837, and had issue,

6a} William Alston, c¢. at Moulin on 8 November, 1804, and had the rank of Lieutenant in the 68™ Native
Infantry (India). He d. at sea off the coast of Arracan on 27 January, 1844.

6a} James Stewart Alston, c¢. at Moulin on 4 June, 1810, and d. at London on 3 November, 1848.

6a} Andrew David Alston, ¢ at Moulin on 21 September, 1813, and d. at Missouri on 17 May, 1848.

6a} Dumfries Crawford Alston, ¢. at Moulin on 20 October, 1817, and had a Commission as Ensign from
General Sir Henry Fane in the East Indies on 1 March, 1838. He dsp on 28 July, 1838.

6a} Charles Rowland Alston, b. on 12 November, 1818, and d. at Gibraltar on 5 September 1852.

6a} Elizabeth Alston, m. at Edinburgh on 11 July, 1826, to Captian James William Bouverie, younger son of
Edward de Bouverie, of Delapre Abbey, (he dsp in March of 1845) and dsp.

6a} Janet Alston, c. at Moulin on 11 March, 1808.

6a} Susan Alston, ¢. at Moulin on 24 December, 1811.

6a} Charlotte Stewart Aston, b. on 9 April, 1815, m. to William Dick, of Prestonfield, and d. on 6 February,
1887. She had issue.

6a} Annie Balcarres Alston, m. at Edinburgh on 10 June, 1846, to Sir Robert Menzies, 7" Baronet of Weem, and
had issue.

- STEWART OF SHEIRGLASS -

ORIGIN. The first of this family was a Malcolm Stewart who is said to have been third son of Robert Stewart, 1°*
of Fincastle, although no proof of this has yet been located. He was resident on the lands of Urquhill Blaris, in the
parish of Fortingall, in 1596 and was father of,

1. Neil Stewart, of Sheirglass, (see below).
2. Alexander Stewart, against whom letters were raised for his having killed John Stewart of Bonskeid and is then

styled as “Alexander Stewart McGilliechallum.” He was brought to justice for his many crimes and executed in
1607.
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3. John Stewart, more popularly known as “John Dow McGilliechallum” or “Black John the son of Malcolm” who,
with his brother Alexander, was a turbulent force within Atholl. They were pursued by the Privy Council for
being “fugitives and outlawis for vyld and abominable murthouris and otheris odious crimes” in 1606. Matters
had escalated to such an extent that the Privy Council pursued “the Baron Reade” Alexander Tarlochson of
Inchmagranoch and Neil Stewart McGilliechallum, John’s his brother, for having reset and entertained him and
bound the Earl of Atholl, to apprehend he and his accomplices and bring order back to his lands but which he
could not manage and as a result of which he was put to the horn and ordered to commit himself in ward to
Edinburgh Castle as a penalty until the offenders had been brought to justice. In 1607, although his brother
Alexander had been captured and executed, John still remained at large with a considerable force of armed men
and a commission was granted to James Gordon, younger of Lesmore, to pass to Atholl and seek him out with
sanctions being given for he use of hagbuts and pistols although this also was to no avail. Later in 1607
commissions were granted to the Stewart of Grantully, Ballechin, Kinnaird and Foss to form a Watch and to
bring peace to Atholl which appears to have been successful. He d. probably by violence by 1620 and was father
of,

3a} Robert Stewart, named as being occupant with his cousin George Stewart of Bohespick on the lands
Ardandeor in a charter for these lands by William, Earl of Tulliebardine, in favour of George Nasmyth of
Leduckie in 1620."*
4. George Stewart, 1** of Urquhillbeg, obtained these lands of from John Stewart of Foss and in which he was infeft
on 26 April, 1594."° He d. prior to 7 April, 1629, and had issue,
4a} Alexander Stewart, 2" of Urquhillbeg, succeeded his father and had a renunciation of the lands of Aldclune
from John Stewart of Shierglass on & April, 1629."*' He was infeft in the lands of Urquhillbeg as heir to his
deceased father on 7 October, 1667,'** and m. firstly to Beatrix Stewart, (she d. in October of 1687'*°). He
m. secondly to Isobel Robertson, (she was widow of Alexander Robertson, of Tennandrie, and . thirdly to
Patrick Forbes), d. in November of 1695 and had issue,
4b} Neil Stewart, 3 of Urquhillbeg, infeft in the lands of Urquhillbeg on 7 September, 1699,"** and m. to
Jean, eldest daughter of Andrew Rattray, of Tullochcurran, (¢/m 12 December, 1672,%). He was
father of,
4d} Alexander Stewart, 4™ of Urquhillbeg, infeft in the lands of Urquhillbeg following upon a
resignation in his favour by his father on 6 October, 1699, and was father of,
4e} Walter Stewart, 5 of Urquhillbeg, infeft in the lands of Urquhillbeg on 14 October,
1736,"7 and served as a Captain in the Atholl Brigade of the Jacobite army during the
uprising of 1746/46. He m. at Moulin on 1 June, 1736, to Marjory, daughter of Captain
Archibald Menzies, of Culdares, (¢/m 1 June, 1736,'8). He was father of,
4f} Archibald Stewart, 6™ of Urquhillbeg, infeft as heir to his father in the lands of
Urquhillbeg on 8 July, 1773, and diponed these lands to his brother-in-law
Donald MacDuff, Mercant in Dunkeld, on 31 March, 1777.1%
4f} Susan Stewart, m. to Donald MacDuff, Merchant in Dunkeld, and had issue.
4f} Elizabeth Stewart, had licence from William Robertson, of Lude, to be allowed to
cut peat from his lands on 20 July, 1803, and is then styled as daughter of the
deceased Walter Steart of Orchillbeg.'"
4b} George Stewart, of Middlehaugh of Dalshian, obtained these lands and m. to Isabel, sister of James
Fergusson, of Dunfallandie. He was father of,
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4c} James Stewart,
Alexander Stewart,
John Stewart,
Ann Stewart,
Margaret Stewart, who, with her brothers Alexander and John and her sister Ann, were all children
by their father’s second marriage and had their brother Neil Stwart of Urquhillbeg appointed their
tutor-at-law.'s

4b
4b
4b
4b

— e e

NEIL STEWART OF SHEIRGLASS, is the first to appear in record as possessor of the lands of Sheirglass and as
son of Malcolm Stewart in Urquhill Blaris, he was witness to a charter by John Robertson, alias
Tarlochson of Monzie, in favour of his spouse Christian Oliphant, relict of George Robertson, of Faskally,
for the liferent of his lands of Easter and Wester Monzie in implementation of a contract of marriage on
12 May, 1596.'®* He was put to the horn by the Privy Council for having reset his brother John dow
McGilliechallum in 1606, and is then styled as Neil Stewart McGilliechallum, obtained the lands of
Bohespick from Alexander Stewart MacThomas, son of Thomas Stewart, 1* of Kinnaird, on 16 October,
1612, and m. to Elizabeth Robertson. He was father of,

1. John Stewart, of Sheirglass, (see below).

2. George Stewart, of Bohespick, infeft in the lands of Bohespick by Alexander Robertson of Inchmagranoch on 8
June, 1621, and is then styled as second son of Neil Stewart of Sheirglass.'® He m. to Margaret, sister of Donald
Robertson, Tutor of Struan, (¢/m at Kirkton of Blair Atholl on 5 January, 1642,') and dsp prior to 5 December,
1662, when his brother John Stewart of Sheirglass, was retoured his heir.'”

JOHN STEWART, OF SHEIRGLASS, to whom his father granted a charter for the fee of the lands of Sheirglass on
13 December, 1611,'® and was infeft in the these lands by the superior William, Master of Tulliebardine,
on 21 January, 1613."° He disponed his lands of Auldclune to Alexander Stewart of Orchillbeg on 7 April,
1629, was still living on 5 December, 1662, when he was retoured heir to his brother George Stewart in
the lands of Bohespick and d. by November of 1665. He was father of,

1. Neil Stewart, of Sheirglass, (see below).

2. Malcolm Stewart, of Innerslannie, infeft in the lands of Innerslannie and Auchmerkmor by John, Duke of Atholl,
on 15 November, 1637, and by which time he had m. Janet MacDuff.'’° He who d. witae patris prior to 12
January, 1657, and was father of,

2a} John Stewart, of Innerslannie, succeeded his father and m. to Isabel, sister of Donald Robertson, of
Killiechangie, (¢/m 18 March, 1680,'7"). He was father of,
2b} John Stewart, of Innerslannie, succeeded his father and m. firstly at Dull on 9 September, 1711, to
Margaret, daughter of John Stewart, of Bonskeid. He m. secondly to Beatrice Stewart and was father
of,
2¢} Alexander Stewart, of Innerslannie, succeeded his father and d. in 1741.7> He had issue,
2d} John Stewart, of Innerslannie, succeeded his father and served with the rank of Captain
in the Atholl Brigade of the Jacobite army during the uprising of 1745/46. He m. at Blair
Atholl on September, 1744, to Elizabeth MacIntosh, in Strathanfearn, and dsp.
2d} Robert Stewart, a natural son by Mary MacLauchlan who was bap. at Blair Atholl on 7
November, 1733.
2c¢} Isobel Stewart, bap. at Blair Atholl on 27 January, 1729.
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2b} Alexander Stewart, who, with his brother John Stewart, acted as cautioners to their brother Malcolm
Stewart in 1708.
2b} Malcolm Stewart, of Auchmark, m. to Janet, daughter of John Robertson, Tutor of Lude, and had a
Discharge from John Robertson of Lude for certain sums of money due as tocher on 18 December,
1708, in which he is styled as son of John Stewart of Innerslannie.'”” He emigrated to Virginia by 25
May, 1732.17#
2b} Isabel Stewart, had a Bond from her brother Malcolm Stewart on 23 December, 1710.
2b} Anna Stewart, m. to Archibald Campbell, eldest son of Mungo Campbell, of Seat and Kincraigie,
(¢/m 17 April, 1699,'7).
2a} Alexander Stewart, m. to Margaret, daughter of Stewart of William Stewart, of Drumcharry, (¢/m in
December of 1674) and granted a Discharge for Tocher to his father-in-law on 10 September, 1677, in
which he is styled as son of the deceased Malcolm Stewart of Innerlsannie.
2a} Janet Stewart, m. to Donald Stewart, third son of the deceased Patrick Stewart, of Drumcharry, (¢/m 12
January, 1657,"7¢) and to whom her “Guidsire” (grandfather) John Stewart, of Sheirglass, was cautioner in
her contract of marriage.

NEIL STEWART, YOUNGER OF SHEIRGLASS , who d. vitae patris prior to November of 1665 and was father of,

JAMES STEWART, OF SHEIRGLASS, infeft in the lands of Sheirglass as heir to his grandfather on 13 November,
1665,"” He was cautioner to his son Donald Stewart’s contract of marriage with Dorothy Stewart on 25
June, 1696, d. prior to February of 1706 and was father of,

DONALD STEWART, OF SHEIRGLASS, infeft in the lands of Sheirglass on 28 February, 1706, and was witness to
the contract of marriage between Neil Stewart, brother of John Stewart, of Bonskeid, and Giles, eldest
daughter of John Stewart of Dalguise on 20 April, 1710.7® He m. to Dorothy, daughter of John Stewart, 7
of Bonskeid, (¢/m 25 June, 1696,'”?) and d. prior to November of 1737. He was father of,

1. Neil Stewart, of Sheirglass, (see below).

2. Malcolm Stewart, served as a Lieutenant in the Atholl Brigade of the Atholl Brigade of the Jacobite army
throughout the uprising of 1745/46 and m. at Dull on 24 January, 1732, to Margaret, daughter of John
Robertson, of Lettoch. He had issue,

2a} Neil Stewart, ¢. at Moulin on 9 January, 1738.

NEIL STEWART OF SHEIRGLASS, infeft in the lands of Sheirglass as heir to his father on 24 November, 1737,'8
and m. at Dull on 15 June, 1730, to Catherine, daughter of James Meek, of Carsie. He was father of,

1. Donald Stewart, of Sheirglass, (see below).

2. Malcolm Stewart, ¢. at Dull on 24 March, 1733, and was one of the Tutors appointed by his brother John Stewart
of Sheirglass to his sons.

3. Robert Stewart, b. on 6™ and c¢. at Blair Atholl on 6 December, 1735. He attained the rank of Captain in the army
and dsp prior to 1784 having bequeathed his estate to his elder brother Donald Stewart of Sheirglass.

3. Jean Stewart, c. at Dull on 3 May, 1738, and m. at Blair Atholl on 14 December, 1769, to Angus Robertson, in
Milton of Kincraigie. They had issue.

DONALD STEWART, OF SHEIRGLASS, ¢. at Dull on 21 July, 1731, succeeded his father and m. at Dull on 8
August, 1756, to Sophia, daughter of John Stewart, younger of Bonskeid, (¢/m 19 August, 1756,). He had
the misfortune to inadvertently kill his brother-in-law John Stewart of Bonskeid, at an Inn in Moulin
where both had retired too following a visit to a local market on 20 October, 1767. It is said that
Sheirglass was so drunk that he cut his lip while eating cheese with his dirk. In a fit of rage at the laughter
at his expense he lashed out and caught the unfortunate Bonskeid under the chin killing him. He was
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forced to flee to Holland where he served in the Scots Brigade of the Prince of Orange until finally gaining
a pardon and returning home. He d. in 1785 and was father of,

1. JOHN STEWART, OF SHEIRGLASS, ¢. at Dull on 3 July, 1757, and had a Disposition from his father for the lands of
Sheirglass on 21 December, 1779."®" He d. unmarried at Sheirglass on 18 July, 1816.'®

2. Neil Stewart, styled as second son in his father’s Testament and dsp prior to July of 1816.

3. CHARLES STEWART, 8™ OF SHEIRGLASS, styled as third son in his father’s Testament. He attained the rank of Captain
in the army and was infeft in the lands of Sheirglass as heir to his elder brother on 21 December, 1816." He d.
unmarried.

4. Malcolm Stewart, ¢ at Dull on 18 May, 1767, and is styled as fourth son in his father’s Testament. He m. at Perth
on 28 November, 1796, to Marjory, daughter of Thomas Whitson, of Parkhill, d in Jamaica in around 1814'*
and was father of,

4a} Malcolm Alexander Stewart, ¢ at Perth on 13 May, 1801, and d. young.
4a} George Stewart, c. at Perth on 2 June, 1810, and d. young.

4a} John Sheirglass Stewart, ¢ at Perth on 16 April, 1814, and d. young.
4a} Margaret Stewart, c. at Perth on 15 August, 1797, and d. young.

4a} Catherine Stewart, c. at Perth on 9 November, 1799, and d. young.

5. Donald Stewart, styled as fifth son in his father’s Testament and dsp.

6. Alexander Stewart, ¢. at Dull on 29 December, 1774, and served as a Surgeon in Madras. He was bequeathed the
liferent of his brother John Stewart of Sheirglass’s heritable property upon his death in 1816.

7. Jean Stewart, styled as eldest daughter in her father’s Testament and , m. at Dull on 8 June, 1805, to Alexander
Stewart, 3™ of Derculich. She dsp.

8. Isabel Stewart, styled as second daughter in her father’s Testament.

9. Sophia Stewart, styled as third and youngest daughter in her father’s Testament and . at Blair Atholl on 12
April, 1816, to Duncan Stewart, of Kindrochit, and had issue.

10 Janet Stewart, a natural daughter by Beatrice Grant who was ¢ at Dull on 21 June, 1754, and to whom her father
bequeathed £20 in his Testament.

- STEWART OF TULLOCH -

OriGIN. The Stewarts of Tulloch are descended from Neil Stewart, 1% of Tulloch, who obtained the lands
of Tulloch in the second half of the 16™ century and is said to have been fourth son of Robert Stewart, 1
of Fincastle, although no proof of this has yet been found. He was father of,

1. William Stewart, 2" of Tulloch, (see below).

2. John Stewart, styled as brother of William Stewart of Tulloch when witness to a Bond by Alexander Robertson of
Inchmagranoch from his mother Beatrix Gardyne on 2 December, 1595,'® and m. to Janet Stewart. He was father
of,

2a} John Stewart, of Easter Invervack, obtained the lands of Easter Invervack from William, Lord Murray,
following upon a resignation made by William Stewart of Tulloch, on 19 December, 1612,"*¢ and m. to
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Barbara, daughter of Andrew Hay, whom he infeft in the liferent of the lands of Easter Invervack on 21
August, 1615." He was father of,
2b} Alexander Stewart, younger of Invervack, m. to Janet, daughter of Robert Robertson, of Struan, (¢/m
7 July, 1626,"®) and dsp prior to February of 1638.
2b} Neil Stewart, of Easter Invervack, had a charter for the lands of Easter Invervack from his father on
22 February, 1638,'"® and from whom desended,
2¢} Robert Stewart, of Easter Invervack, who was grandfather of,
2d} Patrick Stewart, of Easter Invervack, infeft as heir to his grandfather in the lands of Easter
Invervack in April of 1738 and served as Captain in the Atholl Brigade of the Jacobite
army during the uprising of 1745/46. Following the failure of the rising he surrendered
himself and was pardoned upon his enlistment in the British army. He d. prior to
October of 1754 and was father of,
2e} Catherine Stewart, who, with her sister Elizabeth, were infeft as heirs to their father
in the lands of Easter Invervack on 21 October, 1754.'
2e} Elizabeth Stewart,
2e} John Stewart, a natural son by Grizel Gordon who was bap. at Blair Atholl on 27
November, 1745.
2a} William Stewart, entered into a contract with his brother John Stewart of Easter Invervack that he would be
infeft in the part of the lands of Easter Invervack called Tom Chastel on 6 December, 1631.*"

WILLIAM STEWART, 2™ oF TuLLOCH, succeeded his father and granted a Discharge on bhalf of Alan Stewart,
his son-in-law, to George Stewart of Arntully for 12 bolls and 2 firlots of victual on 5 December, 1599, in
which is styled as “William Stewart MacNeil, of Tullycht.'””” He had a charter for the lands of Easter
Invervack from James Stewart, Earl of Atholl, on 15 June, 1607, which he assigned to John Stewart in Brae
Uachdar the following day'*® and was father of,

1. ALEXANDER STEWART, 3* OF TuLLocH, succeeded his father and with his brother William Stewart acted as
cautioners to John Stewart in Easter Invervack in a contract for the 10 shilling lands of Easter Invervack called
Tom Chastel to William Stewart, his brother, on 6 December, 1631.”* He dsp and was succeeded by his
great-nephew.

2. William Stewart, (see below).

3. A daughter, m. by 5 December, 1599, to Alan Stewart, eldest son and heir of Dugald Stewart, of Strathgarry,
and had issue.

195

WILLIAM STEWART, styled as brother to Alexander Stewart of Tulloch when both were cautioner to John
Stewart, of Easter Invervack, on 6 December, 1631, and was father of,

ALEXANDER STEWART, YOUNGER OF TULLOCH, who d. vitae patris and was father of,

ROBERT STEWART, 4™ oF TULLOCH, retoured heir to his father Alexander Stewart, younger of Tulloch, his
grandfather’s brother Alexander Stewart of Tulloch, and his great grandfather William Stewart, of
Tulloch, in the lands of Easter Invervack on 18 January, 1672, and m. to Janet Robertson, to whom a
liferent of the lands of Wester Tulloch was reserved on 28 November, 1688.1°° He was father of,
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DoNALD STEWART, 5™ oF TuLLOCH, infeft in the lands of Tulloch upon his father’s resignation on 9
February, 1689,"” and m. to Elizabeth, daughter of Thomas Stewart, of Findoynet, (¢/m 18 April,
1688,'%). He is said to have been killed during the Jacobite uprising of 1715 and was father of,

1. Alexander Stewart, of Tulloch, (see below).

2. Robert Stewart, m. to Christian, daughter of Adam Reid, of Edradynate, (¢/m 27 July, 1725,), served with the
rank of Lieutenant in the Atholl Brigade of the Jacobite army during the uprising of 1745/46 and was 4. at the
battle of Culloden on 16 April, 1746. He was father of,

2a} Alexander Stewart, acted as executor to his father and is then styled as his only child. '’
2a} Katherine Stewart, c. at Blair Atholl on 24 November, 1728, and d. young.

ALEXANDER STEWART, 6™ OF TuLLocH, was infeft in the lands of Tulloch as heir to his father on 12
November, 1722, and which lands he disponed to John, Duke of Atholl, on 14 April, 1723, in which he
reserved a liferent for himself.?® He entered into a contract of wadset with James, Duke of Atholl, for the
lands of Pitdornes on 3 November, 1738, m. to Margaret, eldest daughter of Thomas Stewart, of
Kinnaird, (¢/m 18 August, 1719,) and was father of,

1. Donald Stewart, m. at Fortingall on 5 December, 1756, to Elspeth, daughter of John MacGregor, of Roro, and dsp
at Edinburgh.
2. James Stewart, of Pitdornes, ¢ at Blair Atholl on 16 June, 1720, and served as a Lieutenant in the Atholl Brigade
of the Jacobite army during the uprising of 1745/46. He m. to Ann, daughter of John Forbes, and had issue,
2a} Thomas Stewart, ¢ on 9 May, 1746.
2a} Gilbert Stewart, ¢ on 7 September, 1749.
2a} John Stewart, said to have become a Gardener for the Duke of Lennox near Richmond.
2a} Barbara Stewart, b. in 1748 and m. at Kinclaven on 20 October, 1776, to James Burns, in Kinclaven. They
had issue.
2a} Jean Stewart, m. at Perth on 18 October, 1785, to John Speedie, Shoemaker in Perth, and had issue,
2a} Mary Stewart, m. at Kinclaven on 11 November, 1792, to James Lamb, in Kinclaven, and had issue.
3. Thomas Stewart, m. at Logierait on 7 June, 1760, to Jean, daughter of Alexander Robertson, of Balnacraig, and
had issue,
3a} Anna Stewart, c. at Logierait on 11 March, 1761.
4. Alexander Stewart, ¢. at Dull on 20 February. 1739, became a Flax Manufacturer and settled at Kirkwall, Orkney,
in around 1764. He m. to Margaret, daughter of Alexander Baikie, in Kirkwall, and had issue,
4a} William Stewart, c. at Kirkwall on 29 March, 1769, and m. at Kirkwall on 16 August, 1803, to Janet Douglas
Grieve. He d in 1825 and was father of,
4b} William Stewart, b. on 19 December, 1803, and was ¢ at Kirkwall on 18 March, 1804. He d. in
infancy.
4b} William Stewart, b. on 24 April, 1807, became a Captain in the Merchant Service and dsp.
4b} Alexander Stewart, b. on 30 October, 1812, and became a Watchmaker. He m. at Kirkwall on 1
October, 1839, to Hannah, daughter of Edward Groundwater, Farmer, (she d. at Kirkwall on 5 April,
1899,%") d. prior to 1851 and was father of,
4c} James Stewart, b. in 1840 and d. in infancy.**
4c} William Stewart, ¢. at Kirkwall on 16 January, 1842, and practised as a Doctor of Medicine. He
m. at Edinburgh on 30 November, 1876, to Edith Eleanor, daughter of Robert James Hebdon,
of Eday,”” (she d in Kirkwall in 1928), d. at Kirkwall on 1 December, 1892,** and was father
of,
4d} Alexander William Stewart, b. in Kirkwall in 1883.
4d} Caroline Hester Stewart, b. in Kirkwall in 1881.
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4d} Edith Eleanor Stewart, b. in Kirkwall in 1885, and m. in 1911 to Douglas MacColl, a
Planter. She d. at Dun on 6 February, 1928.2
4d} Mary Stewart, b. in Kirkwall in 1887.
4c} Alexandrina Baikie Stewart, ¢ at Kirkwall on 7 January, 1844, and m. at Kirkwall on 26
October, 1868, to William Graham, Inland Revenue Officer. They had issue.
4b} James Stewart, b. on 27 September, 1817.
4b} Margaret Stewart, b. on 30 September, 1805, and d. unmarried.*”
4a} Alexander Stewart, c at Kirkwall on 17 April, 1770.
4a} Baikie Stewart, d. unmarried at Kirkwall on 16 June, 1862.2%
4a} Margaret Stewart, ¢ at Kirkwall on 12 October, 1774, m. at Kirkwall on 12 November, 1796, to David
Spense, of Scalpa, and had issue.
4a} Elizabeth Stewart, ¢. at Kirkwall on 23 September, 1771, m. at Kirkwall on 8 November, 1800, to William
Smith, Vinter in Kirkwall, and had issue.
4a} Elspeth Stewart, c. at Kirkwall on 26 February, 1781.
5. Anne Stewart, c at Blair Atholl on 1 August 1723.
6. Isobel Stewart, b. in October of 1736.

- STEWART OF Foss -

ORIGIN. The Stewarts of Foss are descended from John Stewart, son of David Stewart, younger son of John
Gorm Stewart, of Fortingall and Garth, who is said to gave been father of,

ALEXANDER STEWART, 1°T ofF Foss, obtained the lands of Killebrochane by 26 June, 1494, when he gave
Sasine of these lands to John Fergusson®” and obtained the lands of Foss and Grannich from Duncan
Cardney of Foss in 1514. He is said to have m. to a daughter of Alastair MacDonnell, of Keppoch, and was
father of,
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1. Neil Stewart, 2™ of Foss, (see below).

2. John Stewart, m. by 27 June, 1562, to Catherine Fergusson, sister and heiress of Thomas Fergusson of Pitfourie,
when they granted an Instrument of Sasine of an annualrent of 24 bolls of victual top be uplifted from the lands
of Pitfour in favour of William Johnsone, Merchant, Burgess of Perth.?'° He was father of,

2a} John Stewart, younger of Pitfourie, styled as son to his father when he appears as witness to a Charter of
Sale by his father and mother of 24 bolls of victual in favour of William Johnstone, Merchant in Perth, in
liferent, and George and John Johnsone, his sons, on 28 June, 1562.*"! He had a charter of resignation in his
favour, following upon a resignation into the hands of John Stewart, Earl of Atholl, for the lands of
Pitfourie, on 28 November, 1565,** and m. to Grissell, daughter of George Leslie of Drummacreich. He
was father of,

2b} John Stewart, of Pitfourie, had an Instrument of Resignation as heir to his father for the lands of
Pitfourie on 9 March, 1588,*"* and had a Reisgnation for these lands from the superior John Stewart,
Earl of Atholl, on 16 November, 1608.>"* He entered into an obligation with Patrick Fergusson,
eldest son of Finlay Fergusson of Balledmond, whom he undertook to infeft in the lands of Pitfourie

on 22 December, 1619.%°

NEIL STEWART, 2™ OF Foss, had a precept of Sasine for the lands of Kinnakile and Foss in 1559 and was
witness to Letters of Reversion by Neil Fleming, a/ias Neilson, for an annualrent of 20 merks Scots
granted to him by John Stewart of Pitfour, on 15 December, 1571, in which he is styled as “Neill Stewart
McAllaster in Foss.”?!* He m. to Elizabeth, apparently daughter of Alexander Robertson, of Calvine, with
whom he was infeft in the lands of Wester Granich on 21 July, 1562,*7 d. in around 1584 and was father
of,

1. John Stewart, 3" of Foss, (see below).

2. William Stewart, 1** of Balnakeilly, (see Stewart of Balnakeilly).

3. Robert Stewart,

4. Alexander Stewart, who, with his brother Robert Stewart, were substitute heirs to their brother William Stewart
in the lands of Balmalze a/jas Kirkton, Auchlat and Auchnahyell, all near Moulin, on 6 February, 1567.*'®

3. Janet Stewart, m. to Donald Robertson, 13" of Strowan, (he m. secondly in, 1587, to Beatrix Farquharson).

JoHN STEWART, 3™ ofF Foss AND MEIKLE GRANICH, appears with his father as witness to an Instrument of
Sasine for all and whole of the Earldom of Atholl in favour of John Stewart, Earl of Atholl, on 28
September, 1579, and had a charter of confrmation for the lands of Foss from John Stewart, Earl of

Atholl, in 1584 wherein he is designed son to Neil Stewart of Foss. He obtained the lands of Wester

Granich from George Robertson, of Easter Granich, in which he was infeft on 3 May, 1605,*° was witness

to a Bond of Caution by James Stewart, Earl of Atholl, Robert, and William Stewart his uncles, not to

harm James Stewart of Ladywell on 6 October, 1603, and m. to Isabel, daughter of Patrick Stewart, 1% of

Ballechin. He was father of,

1. NEIL STEWART, 4™ OF Foss, to whom his father assigned the lands of Innerhadden on 19 January, 1617, and is then
styled as his eldest son and heir.””! He m. firstly to Jean, daughter of James Stewart, 1* of Ladywell, secondly by 1
December, 1624, to Grizel, daughter of John Farquharson, of Invercauld, when they granted Letters of Reversion
to Robert Calmanach for the 2 merk lands of Tresset.””> He d. prior to 1664 and was father of,
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la} ALEXANDER STEWART, YOUNGER OF Foss, m. to Jean, daughter of James Stewart, 1* of Wester Cluny. He dsp
vitae patris prior to 1664.

2. John Stewart, of Cammoch and Foss, infeft as heir to John Stewart, of Granycht, his father, and Neil Stewart, of
Foss, his brother in the lands of Stron and Gorbet, Lassintullich, Trinafour, Easter and Wester Granycht and the
Isle on Loch Tummel on 17 June, 1664.”* He m. firstly by 23 May, 1642, to Beatrix, daughter of Alexander
Stewart, 5" of Bonskeid, when they gave their consent to the granting of the lands of Cammoch to his elder
brother Neil Stewart of Granycht, son and heir of the deceased John Stewart of Foss,** and had issue ; and
secondly to Helen, daughter of Alexander Fleming, 3™ of Moness, (¢/m 15 &22 February, 1649. She was widow of
James Stewart, fiar of Duntaullich, whom she had m. in 1638%*°). He d. prior to March of 1671 and was father of,

2a} John Stewart, 7 of Foss, (see below).

3. James Stewart, to whom his father disponed the lands of Cammoch and in which he was infeft on 24 February,
1613. He dsp by 17 June, 1664, when his brother and heir John Stewart of Foss granted latters of Reversion for
lands to John, Earl of Atholl.??

4. Janet Stewart, m. by 1 April, 1629, to Patrick Drummond, 6" of Meggar and Easter Crieff, (he was widow of
Elizabeth, daughter of James Kinross of Kippenross).

5. Margaret Stewart, m. firstly in 1603 to John Stewart, fiar of Kinnaird, and had issue ; and secondly by 28 August,
1639, to Duncan Stewart, of Appin.

6. Barbara Stewart, m. to John Stewart, eldest son and heir of Neil Stewart, of Innerkynnachan, and had issue.

7. Dorothy Stewart, m. to Duncan Robertson, 1 of Drummachuine, (¢/zn 8 July, 1638), and had issue.

8. A daughter, m. to Thomas Stewart, 2™ of Findoynet, and had issue.

JoHN STEWART, 6™ OF CAMMOCH AND Foss, retoured heir to his father in the lands of Foss on 3 March,
1671, and served as one of the bailies of the Regality of Atholl in which capacity he is found in a Precept
by himself commanding the officers to charge John Fergusson of Dunfallandie to pay to John, Marquess
of Atholl, the sum of £40, on 15 May, 1691.>” He m. firstly to a woman whose name has not, as yet, been
ascertained, and by whom he had issue ; and secondly to Jean Stewart, (¢/m 1 May, 1686.*® She was
widow of Donald Dewar, of Tullochmoulin,) was father of,

1. Alexander Stewart, 7 of Foss, (see below).

2. John Stewart, of Cammoch, m. to Beatrix, daughter of John Robertson, Tutor of Lude, (¢/m 15 February,
1676,”°) and in implementation of which marriage his father, with consent of Alexander Stewart, younger of
Foss, his brother, granted to him the lands of Cammoch. He was father of,

2a} John Stewart, of Cammoch, m. to Isobel, eldest daughter of Donald Robertson, of Killiechangie, (¢/m 19
February, 1704,>°).
2a} Neil Stewart, who was father of,
2b} Barbara Stewart, m. to Robert Robertson, of Invervack, and had issue.
2a} Helen Stewart, m. to John MacDonald, of Innervar, (¢/m 16 February, 1694,%").

ALEXANDER STEWART, 7™ OF Foss, succeeded his father and m. firstly to Margaret, daughter of Sir Duncan
Menzies, of Weem, (¢/m at Weem on 20 March, 1666,%) to whom, with consent of his father, he granted
a charter for the lands of Franick and Ballintome in implementation of their contract of marriage on 20
March, 1666. He m. to secondly at Dull on 30 March, 1711, to Janet, daughter of John Dewar, of
Tullochmoullin, d in March of 1720?** and was father of,

1. John Stewart, 8 of Foss, (see below).
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2. Agnes Stewart, m. firstly at Logierait on 28 September, 1698, to Charles Robertson, of Balnaguard, and secondly
in 1711 to Thomas Fleming, 6™ of Moness, (he was widow of Amelia, daughter of Alexander Menzies, 1* Baronet
of Weem, by whom he had issue). She is styled as relict of Charles Robertson of Balnaguard in a Bond subscribed
by her dated 29 November, 1715, and to which a witness is John Stewart of Foss who is styled as her brother.”**
By her first husband she had issue.

3. Helen Stewart, m. to Donald Stewart, of Duntaullich, (¢/m 17 August, 1708,%*) and had issue.

4. Isobel Stewart, m. at Dull on 11 July, 1734, to Alexander Menzies, of Bolfracks, (he d. in October of 1738%¢) and
had issue.

5. Janet Stewart, m. at Dull on 21 February, 1740, to Alexander Irvine and had issue.

JoHN STEwART, 8™ oF Foss, infeft in the fee of the Barony of Foss upon his father’s resignation in June of
1696%7 and m. at Dull on 6 June, 1705, to his maternal cousin Susannah, eldest daughter of Thomas
Fleming, 6 of Moness, (¢/m 13 Jne, 1705,%¢). He was father of,

1. Alexander Stewart, c. at Dull on 5 September, 1719, and d. young.

2. ROBERT STEWART, 9™ OF Foss, c. at Dull on 30 July, 1721, succeeded his father and and dsp.

3. John Stewart, 10" of Foss, (see below).

4. Thomas Stewart, c. at Dull on 6 March, 1727.

5. Joseph Stewart, ¢. at Dull on 31 August, 1730.

6. Christian Stewart, c. at Dull on 19 August, 1706, and m. to Thomas Stewart, 6" of Kinnaird, (¢/m 8 March, 1727).
They had issue.

7. Susanna Stewart, bap. at Dull on 14 July, 1715, and m. at Dull on 10 October, 1744, to Mr. John Storer, Minister
of Foss.

JoHN STEWART, 10™ OF Foss, c. at Dull on 16 March, 1725, and succeeded his brother in the lands of Foss.

He served as an officer in the Atholl Brigade in the Jacobite army of 1745 and escaped after the battle of

Culloden in 1746. He m. at Dull on 20 February, 1753, to Jean, daughter of Robert Stewart, 9" of

Fincastle,?*® and was father of,

1. John Stewart, younger of Foss, bap. at Dull on 21 June, 1754, and m. at Dull on 10 October, 1777, to Christian,
daughter of William Stewart, 2™ of Garth.?* He dsp prior to 29 May, 1787.24

2. Robert Stewart, bap. at Dull on 10 November, 1755, and d. young.

3. Joseph Stewart, 11" of Foss, (see below).

4. Alexander Stewart, a natural son by Margaret Gillies who was bap. at Dull on 11 July, 1750.

5. Margaret Stewart, c. at Dull on 4 April, 1756.

6. Jean Stewart, c. at Dull on 27 December, 1774.

JosePH STEWART, 11™ of Foss, c. at Dull on 7 March, 1768, and m. firstly at Edinburgh on 1 February,
1800, to Elizabeth MacKenzie, daughter and heiress of Alexander Menzies, of Chesthill, (she was b. at
Edinburgh on 1 May, 1776, and was retoured heir to her father on 24 October, 1810. She d. on 6
December, 1813*2). He m. secondly at Dull on 25 October, 1818, to Margaret Pollock, d. on 11 February,
1835, and had issue by both wives,

1. John Stewart, 12 of Foss and Chesthill, (see below).

2. Eleanor Stewart, ¢. at Dull on 30 March, 1801, m. at Edinburgh on 2 December, 1822, to Thomas Pender,
Comptroller of Taxes for Scotland, eldest son of Thomas Pender, Comptroller of Revenue for Scotland, and d. at
Innervar Lodge, Fortingall, on 5 January, 1877. They had issue,

2a} Alexander Pender, c. at Edinburgh on 8 September, 1826.
2a} Joseph Stewart Pender, b. on 18 June, was c. at Edinburgh on 11 July, 1828, and d. on 5 March, 1905.

234OPR 346. “John Stewart, brother to Foss and Jean, sister to Henry Stewart of Fincastle.”
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2a} John Menzies Pender, b. in 1835, and farmed at Auchindall, Kilmonivaig. He m. at Kirkmichael on 2
August, 1867, to Amelia, daughter and eventual heiress of Patrick Small, of Dirnanean, (she was b. on 4
May, 1837), and had issue,

2b} John Stewart Menzies Pender, b. on 25 May, 1868.

2b} Patrick William Small Pender, 4. on 6 May, 1871, and d. at Auchindall on 13 December of that year.

2b} James Small Pender, of Dirnanean, b. on 13 June, 1872, succeeded his maternal uncle James Small, of
Dirnanean, in the lands of Dirnanean and dsp at Dirnanean House on 4 January, 1914.

2b} Amelia Margaret Pender, 5. on 18 November, 1869, and d. on 10 June, 1913.

2b} Eleanor Elizabeth Charlotte Pender, 5. on 8 November, 1874.

2a} Elizabeth MacKenzie Menzies Pender, b. on 29 April and ¢ at Edinburgh on 27 May, 1825, and d.
unmarried at Inverar Lodge, Aberfeldy, in 1872.

2a} Helen Pender, ¢ at Edinburgh on 23 January, 1830.

3. Jane Mary Stewart, c. at Dull on 28 July, 1802, m. at Dull on 18 December, 1819, to Captain Gilbert Stewart,
eldest son of Captain James Stewart, second son Gilbert Stewart, 11" of Fincastle, and had issue.

4. James Elizabeth Menzies, c. at Dull on 18 January 1806, and dsp in 1839.

. Alexandrina Charlotte Stewart Menzies, ¢. at Dull on 23 February, 1808, and d. in 1825.

6. Margaret Stewart Menzies, ¢. at Dull on 15 December, 1809, and m. on 2 June, 1833, to Alexander Robertson
Irvine, Minister of Blair Atholl, (he was b. at Fortingall on 30 January, 1806, and was son of Alexander Irvine,
Minister of Little Dunkeld. He m. secondly on 24 September, 1844, to Sophia, daughter of Captain Duncan
Robertson, of Kindrochit, and d. on 2 September, 1867, having had issue). She d. on 22 January, 1836, and had
issue.

7. Amelia Stewart, m. at St. Andrews on 31 January, 1843, to Captain David Campbell.

8. Joseph Stewart, c. at Dull on 4 October 1819, and farmed at Wester Inverar, Glenlyon, where he d unmarried on
9 April, 1895.2%

9. Alexander James Menzies, c¢. at Dull on 4 December 1820.

10. Neil Henry Menzies, c¢. at Dull on 10 February 1826.

11. James William Menzies, c. at Dull on 29 April 1828.

12. Isabella Park Menzies, c. at Dull on 22 February 1822.

13. Henrietta Menzies, c¢. at Dull on 22 February, 1825, and d. unmarried at Wester Inverar on 19 November,
191724

14. Robert Stewart, a natural son by Ann Cameron who was bap. at Dull on 15 July, 1790.

wul

JoHN STEWART, 12™ OF Foss AND CHESTHILL, b. and c. at Dull on 25 March, 1804, and was retoured heir to

his mother in the lands of Chesthill on 1 August, 1823. He m. on 28 November, 1860, to Katherine

Thurlow, daughter of William Fraser, second son of Alexander Fraser, 15" Lord Saltoun, (she was 4. on

18 December, 1840, and d. on 4 April, 1917,) and d. on 25 April, 1868. He was father of,

1. John Joseph Stewart Menzies, d. in infancy on 3 January, 1862.*

2. William James Breadalbane Stewart Menzies, of Chesthill, . on 8 April, 1863, and was retoured heir to his father
on 20 July, 1870. He dsp on 15 May, 1911.%¢

3. Eleanor Elizabeth May Stewart Menzies, bap. Fortingal on 25 September, 1865.

WILLIAM JAMES BREADALBANE STEWART MENZIES, OF CHESTHILL, . on 8 April, 1863, and was retoured heir to
his father on 20 July, 1870. He dsp on 15 May, 1911.%

- STEWART OF BALNAKEILLY -

ORIGIN. The Stewarts of Balnakeilly are descended from William Stewart, son of Neil Stewart, of Foss who had a
Precept for a charter of confirmation for the lands of Balmalze a/ias Kirkton, Auchlat and Auchnahyell, all near
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Moulin, on 6 February, 1567,*® and m. to Mary, daughter of Sir William Scott, of Balweary. He d by 22
December, 1619, and was father of,

1. James Stewart, the eldest son who was nominated heir to his father in the lands of Balmalze alias Kirkton,
Auchlat and Auchnahyell, on 6 February, 1567, and m. to Jean, daughter of Robert Abercromby, of Murthly. He
dsp prior to December of 1619.

2. John Stewart, 2™ of Balnakeilly, (see below).

3. Alexander Stewart, of Tombuie, appears with his brother John Stewart of Balnakeilly as witness to a Charter of
Sale by John Stewart of Pitfour for the lands of Pitfour in favour of Patrick Fergusson, eldest son of Finlay
Fergusson, of Balledmond, on 22 December, 1619.%*

4. Duncan Stewart, resided in Auchnahyll.*

JOHN STEWART, 2" OF BALNAKEILLY, witness to Letters of Obligation by John Stewart of Pitfourie that he
had received from Finlay Fergusson in Balledmond the sum of 1000 merks Scots on 15 January, 1612, and
is then styled as fiar of Balnekeilly.”® He succeeded his father by 22 December, 1619, when he was witness
to a Charterof sale by John Stewart of Pitfourie for the lands of Pitfourie in favour of Patrick Fegusson??
and granted a Discharge for 50 merks Scots to Fergus Fergusson of Balledmond on 9 October, 1630.** He
m. to Marjory, daughter of Donald Stewart, of Duntullich, and was father of,

1. John Stewart, 3™ of Balnakeilly, (see below).
2. Isabella Stewart, m. to Finlay Cuthbert, son of Duncan Cuthbert a/ias MacInvoir, in Pitnacree, (¢/m at Moulin on
7 July 1614,>*).

JOHN STEWART, 3* OF BALNAKEILLY, styled as son to John Stewart of Balnakeilly when he appears as witness
to a Discharge by his father to Fergus Fergusson of Balledmond on 9 October, 1630. He m. firstly to
Marjory, daughter of Alexander Robertson, of Wester Straloch, (¢/m 20 July, 1633,>°) and had issue ; and
secondly to Elspeth MacGregor, (she m. secondly by ¢/m 16 November, 1683, to Angus Robertson in
Grannich®®). He d. by December of 1680 and was father of,

1. John Stewart, 4" of Balnakeilly, (see below).

2. Walter Stewart, m. to Margaret, daughter of Alexander Menzies, of Aberfeldy, and with whom he was infeft in the
lands of Brolick of Killiechassie, Cluny and Balnald which he had acquired from John Stewart of Killiechassie on
21 August, 1671.%” He had issue,

2a} James Stewart, 1** of Kincraigie, obtained the lands of Kincraigie from Robert Robertson, of Essendie, by
Disposition dated 30 May, 1696, and in which he was infeft on 9" June of that same year.®® He m. at
Logierait on 5 April, 1698, to Marjory, daughter of Thomes Stewart, 3 of Stenton, (¢/m 4 April, 1698,)
and d. in 1752. He was father of,
2b} Thomas Stewart, bap. at Logierait on 17 April, 1699.

3. Alexander Stewart, acted as bailie to his sister Margaret Stewart in her marriage contract with James Cuthbert on
6 November, 1686, and is then styled as third son of the deceased John Stewart, of Balnakeilly, and is styled as
uncle to John Stewart of Balnakeilly when he appears as witness to an Instrument of Sasine for the lands of
Pitfour in favour of Finlay Fergusson on 17 January, 1706.>
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4. Tsobel Stewart, m. to Alexander Stewart, 2™ of Wester Cluny, (¢/m 20 December, 1680.! He was widow of
Catherine, daughter of Duncan Campbell, 2™ of Lagvinsheoch and Monzie, whom he had m. in 1667 and by
whom he had issue).

5. Margaret Stewart, m. to James Cuthbert, of Nether Clonquhat, (¢/m 6 November, 1686,%?).

6. Agnes Stewart, m. to John Cunison, of Balnacree, (¢/m 29 October, 1689, & 30 January, 1690,%?).

JOHN STEWART, 4™ OF BALNAKEILLY, succeeded his father and m. to Margaret, daughter of John Stewart, 1%
of Fungorth, (¢/m at Dunkeld on 20 March, 1664,**). He was father of,

1. John Stewart, 5" of Balnakeilly, (see below).

2. William Stewart, b. in around 1688 and was educated at St Salvator’s College, St. Andrews, where he obtained an
M.A. on 23 July, 1697. He was ordained Minister at Blairgowrie on 3 February, 1702, and transferred to Perth
West Church on 4 July, 1721, and m. on 10 April, 1703, to Jean, daughter of John Scrimgeour, of Kirkton, (¢/m 9
March, 1703.%° She d. in 1745). He d. on 28 January, 1733, and was father of,

2a} John Stewart, Minister of Tealing, 5. on 15 March, 1704, and was educated at St.Andrews where he
obtained a M.A. in 1722. He m. at Tealing on 15 November, 1744, to Katherine, daughter of Sir Michael
Balfour, of Denmiln, (she d. on 20 July, 1789,) and d. on 12 September, 1763. He had issue,

2b} William Stewart, b. on 22 February, 1746.

2a} James Stewart, c. at Blairgowrie on 4 December, 1707, and was presented to the ministry at Clunie by James
Murray, Duke of Atholl and ordained 27 August, 1730. He d. in his father’s house in Perth on 6 December,
1730.

2a} Robert Stewart,

2a} William Stewart, c. at Blairgowrie on 25 October, 1706, and d. young.

2a} William Stewart, c. in Blairgowrie on 28 April, 1717.

2a} Jean Stewart, c. in Blairowrie on 24 June, 1705, and d. young.

a} Margaret Stewart, b. in June 1709.
}
}
}
}

[\

2a} Catherine Stewart, c. at Blairgowrie on 10 August, 1710.

2a} Jean Stewart, c. at Blairgowrie on 9 June, 1714.

2a} Elizabeth Stewart, c. at Blairgowrie on 26 July, 1716, and d. young.
2a} Elizabeth Stewart, c. at Perth on 24 June, 1722.

JOHN STEWART, 5™ OF BALNAKEILLY, b. in around 1672 and m. firstly at Kilspindie on 27 February, 1694, to

Jean, daughter and co-heiress of William Lindsay, of Kilspindie, (¢/m 17 February, 1694.% She was bap.

at Kilspindie on 28 March, 1669), and secondly at Blairgowrie on 24 March, 1711, to his maternal cousin

Katherine, daughter of James Blair, 10" of Ardblair. He m. thirdly in 1729 to Sophia, daughter of

MacBrair of Netherwood, d. on 31 October, 1742, and was father of,

1. James Stewart, the eldest son by his father’s first marriage who was passed over in succession.

2. John Stewart, 6 of Balnakeilly, (see below).

3. Isobel Stewart, m. at Dull on 11 October, 1725, to John Stewart, 9" of Bonskeid, and had issue.

4. Margaret Stewart, m. in 1723 to John Stewart, 6" of Fondoynet, and had issue.

5. Katherine Stewart, m. at Blair Atholl on 15 October, 1756, to David Rattray, in Blair,*’ (he m. secondly at Blair
Atholl on 17 November, 1763, to Jean, daughter of William Rattray, of Borland, and had issue) and had issue.

6. Ann Stewart, m. at Blair Atholl on 16 April, 1761, to John Seaton, in Nether Campsie.

JOHN STEWART, 6™ OF BALNAKEILLY, a son by his father’s second marriage, was b. in 1718 and was retoured
his heir on 2 August, 1743, in place of his elder half-brother James Stewart. He m. at Moulin on 18
March, 1747, to Barbara, only child in life of Patrick Lindsay, Merchant in Perth, son of John Lindsay, of
Arnbathy, (she d. on 26 August, 1773), d. on 7 June, 1809, aged 91 years®® and was father of,

1. John Stewart, c. at Moulin on 10 April, 1748, and d. young.
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2. Alexander Stewart, 7" of Balnakeilly, (see below).
3. Peter Stewart, c¢. at Moulin on 10 June, 1753, and dsp.
4. John Steart, ¢. at Moulin on 8 January, 1760, and dsp.
5. William Stewart, ¢. at Moulin on 7 March, 1764, and dsp.
6. Duncan Stewart, ¢. at Moulin on 13 May, 1767, and dsp.
7. Edmund Stewart, a twin with Duncan and was c. at Moulin on 13 May, 1767. He dsp.
8. James Stewart, ¢. at Moulin on 29 September, 1764, and dsp.
9. Marjory Stewart, ¢. at Moulin on 5 November, 1751, and m. at Edinburgh on 8 May, 1783, to Adam Stewart,
Writer in Edinburgh. They had issue,
9a} Barbara Stewart, m. to Henry Black, of Mount Ulston, Jedburgh, and had issue,
9b} HENRY BLACK STEWART, 8™ OF BALNAKEILLY, c. at Jedburgh on 2 August, 1809, and m. at Edinburgh on
19 August, 1847, to Mary Forbes Kinloch, only daughter of Captain James Hood, (she d. on 13 June,
1905). He succeeded his great-uncle Alexander Stewart, in the lands of Balnakeilly, d. at Balnakeilly
on 6 July, 1881,* and had issue,
9c} ALEXANDER BLAIR STEWART, 9™ OF BALNAKEILLY, . on 28 November, 1849, and attained the rank
of Major in the Black Watch. He dsp on 30 March, 1936.
9c} Henry James John Stewart, ¢. at Moulin on 23 September, 1853, and dsp in 1909.
9c} Charles Edward Stewart, bap. at Edinburgh on 20 May, 1856, m. in 1897 to Elizabeth, daughter
of Gavin Paterson Hamilton (she d. on 19 January, 1957), and d. in China on 27 December,
1918. He was father of,
9d} MuRIeL ATHELSTAN HOOD STEWART, 10™ OF BALNAKEILLY, b. in 1899 and succceded on the
death of her uncle Alexander Blair Stewart in 1936. She m. firstly on 25 April, 1922, to
Aubyn Wilson, eldest son of Harold Wilson, (he d. on 19 May, 1934, aged 44 years), and
secondly to Captain Grenville Stephens (he d at Balnakeilly on 13 June, 1972). By her
first husband she had issue,
9e} Ralph Stewart Wilson, b. on 25 January, 1923.
9e} Blair Aubyn Wilson, b. on 17 July, 1929.
9e} Prudence Wilson, b. on 12 January, 1926.
9c¢} Gordon Stewart, c. at Leith on 2 December, 1861.
9c¢} Florence Edith Stewart, c. at Leith on 9 July, 1864.
9c} Barbara Lindsay Stewart, c¢. at Moulin on 14 July, 1848, and d. unmarried at Edinburgh in
1885.
9c} Mary Marjory Stewart, c. at Moulin on 19 May, 1851.
9c} Rosalinda Stewart, b. on 1 February, 1855, and m. in 1887 to John Howard Lyons, (he d. in
1915).
9c} Ada Stewart, bap. at Crammond on 7 July, 1858, m. in 1887 to William Richardson, (he d. in
1929) and d. in 1922.
9c} Margaret Howard Stewart, 5. on 12 June, 1860, and . in 1895 to William Hawtayne. She d. on
30 November, 1926.
10. Katherine Stewart, ¢. at Moulin on 11 February, 1757.
11. Jean Stewart, ¢. at Moulin on 17 August, 1758.
12. Barbara Stewart, b.in 1755
13. Margaret Stewart, ¢. at Moulin on 25 March, 1766.
14. Emilia Stewart,

ALEXANDER STEWART, 7™ OF BALNAKEILLY, . on 31 March and ¢ at Moulin on 4 April, 1750. He was
retoured heir to his mother on 4 February, 1774, and to his father on 15 December, 1815, and dsp on 17
November, 1832, being succeeded by his great-nephew Henry Black.

- STEWART OF DRUMCHARRY AND (GARTH -

ORIGIN. The Stewarts of Drumcharry are descended from John Stewart in Duntaullich, younger son of Neil
Stewart, of Garth, (d. 1499). He obtained the lands of Innerkynnachan, Doyne, Inver and Croick, all in the
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Barony of Foss, from Duncan Cardney, of Foss, on 17 November, 1515,”° which he afterwards renounced and
had issue of whom his great-grandson was,

WILLIAM STEWART, OF DUNTAULLICH, retoured heir to Mary Stewart, daughter of the deceased Neil Stewart,
of Garth, who was brother of the great-grandfather on 26 June, 1630.”" He obtained a Charter for the
lands of Wester Drumcharry and Ardaisseth, lying within the Barony of Fortingall, from Thomas Stewart,
of Grantully, on 16 June, 1609,”> m. to Christian Robertson and was father of,

1. John Stewart, of Duntaulich, infeft in the lands of Easter and Wester Duntaulllich on 8 December, 1612,”* and m.
to Margaret, daughter of Neil Stewart, of Innerkynnachan, with whom he was infeft by his father in the lands of
Cuthill and half of Dalmunzie on 9 December, 1628. He was father of,

la} James Stewart, fiar of Duntaullich, the eldest son, who m. to Helen, daughter of Alexander Fleming, 3™ of
Moness, (¢/m in June of 1638.”7* She m. secondly by ¢/m 15 & 22 February, 1649, to John Stewart, of
Cammoch,) and d. prior to February of 1649. He was father of,
1b} John Stewart, of Duntaullich, retoured heir to his great-grandfather William Stewart of Duntaullich,
on 3 March, 1671, dspin July of 1671.
1b} William Stewart of Duntaullich, succeeded his brother on his death in 1671 and m. to a daughter of
John Stewart, 3" of Findoynet. He was father of,
1c} Donald Stewart of Duntaulich, infeft in the lands of Duntaullich as heir to John Stewart of
Duntaullich, his grandfather on 17 May, 1684, and m. firstly to Margaret, daughter of John
Robertson, of Balnacraig, (¢/m 17 April, 1686,”7°). He m. secondly to Helen, daughter of
Alexander Stewart, of Foss, (¢/m 17 August, 1708,”7) d. prior to December of 1739 and was
father of,
1d} Alexander Stewart, of Duntaulich, infeft in the lands of Duntaullich on 5 December,
1739,”% and m. to Catherine, daughter of Rev. Duncan Stewart, 1% of Strathgarry. He had
issue,
le} Donald Stewart, of Duntaulich, m. at Dull on 19 December, 1749, to Jean Stewart
at which time he is styled as younger of Duntaulich. He was father of,
1f} Donald Stewart, of Duntaullich, succeeded his father and m. at Dull on 14
January, 1788, to Christian, daughter of Donald MacLaren, of Invernenty.
He sold the lands of Duntallich to Archibald Buttar, of Pitlochry, in 1834
and was father of,
1g} Robert Stewart, bap. at Dull on 25 February, 1789.
1g} Jean Stewart, bap. at Dull on 11 May, 1790.
1f} Robert Stewart, bap. at Dull on 25 December, 1751.
1f} Alexander Stewart, bap. at Dull on 23 December, 1756.
1f} Janet Stewart, bap. at Dull on 15 May, 1752.
1f} Betty Stewart, bap. at Dull on 10 February, 1754.
1f} Mary Stewart, bap. at Dull on 15 March, 1758.
1f} Jean Stewart, m. to Allan Stewart, of Bunrannoch and Innerhadden, and dsp.
le} Ann Stewart, m. at Dull on 15 May, 1752, to Donald Forbes, in Foss, and had issue.
le} Archibald Stewart, a natural son by Mary MacLain who was bap. at Dull on 5
December, 1718.
le} Grizel Stewart, a natural daughter by Isabel Stewart who was bap. at Dull on 10
April, 1719.
1d} Ann Stewart, a child by her father’s second marriage who m. at Dull on 1 January, 1734,
to Alexander MacDonald.
1d} Janet Stewart, a natural daughter by Janet Ross who was bap. at Logierait in 1683.
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1d} Christian Stewart, a natural daughter by Janet Gray who was bap. at Logierait in 1684.
1b} Margaret Stewart,
1b} Jean Stewart, who, with her sister Margaret, were served heirs-portioners to their father on 21 July,
1687.
la} Elizabeth Stewart, m. to James Stewart, eldest son and heir of Alexander Stewart, of Tempar, (¢/m 8 July,
1638,7°).

2. Patrick Stewart, 2™ of Drumcharry, (see below).

3. Alexander Stewart, served heir provisional to his brother Patrick Stewart in the lands of Wester Drumcharry on 2
September, 1613. He is styled as a tenant in Glenshee and son to William Stewart of Duntaullich when he appears
as witness to an Instrument by Duncan Robertson of Faskally narrating that he had passed to the township of
Corribane and broke the peats there on 24 June, 1630,%*° and apparently was father of,

3a} Donald Stewart, of Ballintuim, obtained the Wadset of the lands of Ballintuim and was father of,
3b} Alexander Stewart, of Ballintuim, to whom his father assigned the Wadset of the lands of Ballintuim
and in which he was infeft on 18 February, 1680,*! m. to Jean, daughter of James Stewart, of Arditie,

(¢/m 6 February, 1679,?). He had issue,
3¢} John Stewart, of Ballintuim, infeft in the lands of Ballintuim as heir to his grandfather in

October of 1714.%

Robert Stewart,

Charles Stewart,

Thomas Stewart, all of whom were cautioners to the marriage of their brother Alexander in 1679.

Neil Stewart,

3b
3b
3b
3b

— e e

PATRICK STEWART, 2™ OF DRUMCHARRY, had a Charter of Alienation from his father for the lands of Wester
Drumcharry to be held by himself and his heirs, whom failing, by his brother Alexander Stewart, and his
heirs, on 2 September, 1613, and in which he is styled as second son.?®* He m. firstly to Elizabeth Stewart,
secondly to Isabel, Alexander Fleming, of Moness, and d. by 8 December, 1641. He had issue,

1. William Stewart, 3 of Drumcharry, (see below).
2. Alexander Stewart, included with his parents in an annualrent from the lands of Cardney on 29 November, 1628,
and is then styled as eldest son by Isabel Fleming.*
3. Donald Stewart, commonly known as Domnhal dubh mor, who m. to Janet, daughter of Malcolm Stewart, of
Innerslannie, (¢/zn 12 January, 1657,%¢) and was father of,
3a} William Stewart, commonly called William ban, who resided in Glentilt and m. firstly to a daughter of
Patrick Small, of Dirnanean. He m. secondly to a daughter of James Stewart, of Laigh of Cluny, and had
issue,
3b} Patrick Stewart, a son by his father’s first marriage who m. to Mary, daughter of Donald Robertson,
sister of Robert Robertson, Dean of Guild of Perth, and had issue,
3¢} Robert Stewart, resided at Bridge-end of Glen Tilt and m. at Logierait on 12 August, 1749, to
Catherine, daughter of Alexander Stewart, of Clochfoldich. He had issue,
3d} Patrick Stewart, c. at Blair Atholl on 11 May, 1751, and d. young.
3¢} Ann Stewart, m. to John Stewart, in Strathrue.
3¢} Susanna Stewart, m. at Logierait on 2 November, 1777, to Thomas MacLaren, Vintner in
Nairn, and had issue.
3b} Ann Stewart, m. to John Stewart, Merchant in Blair Atholl, and had issue.
3b} Donald Stewart, m. to Jean, daughter of Small of Dirnanean, and had issue,
3¢} William Stewart, in Dalchalloch, m. at Blair Atholl on 20 March, 1753, to Margaret, daughter of
John Robertson, of Strathruaidh, and had issue,
3d} Donald Stewart, c. at Blair Atholl on 18 November, 1754, and d. young of smallpox.
3d} John Stewart, ¢ at Blair Atholl on 29 August, 1756, and d. young of smallpox.
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3d} William Stewart, in Dalchalloch, ¢ at Blair Atholl on 26 August, 1760, and m. at Blair
Atholl on 3 March, 1789, to Jean, daughter of Duncan Robertson, of Auchleeks. He was
father of,
3e} William Stewart, c. at Blair Atholl on 25 July, 1800.
3e} Donald Stewart, ¢ at Blair Atholl on 15 January, 1803.
3e} Jean Stewart, ¢ at Blair Atholl on 31 December, 1789.
3e} Margaret Stewart, ¢. at Blair Atholl on 18 April, 1791.
3e} Helen Stewart, c. at Blair Atholl on 22 April, 1794.
3e} Marjory Stewart, c at Blair Atholl on 2 August, 1796, and d. young.
3d} Jean Stewart, c. at Blair Atholl on 11 October, 1758, m. at Blair Atholl on 9 April, 1776, to
James Robertson, of Kindrochit, (¢/m 30 March, 1776. He d. in August of 1823) and d.
in 1818. They had issue.
3d} Ann Stewart, c. at Blair Atholl on 29 August, 1762, and m. to Robert MacLaggan, in Den
of Strathardle.
3d} Marjory Stewart, ¢ at Blair Atholl on 28 August, 1764, and m. at Blair Atholl on 20 July,
1785, to Alexander Stewart, of Findoynet.
3d} Christian Stewart, d. young.
3d} Margaret Stewart, c. at Blair Atholl on 23 January, 1768, and d. young.
3d} Ann Stewart,
3d} Elizabeth Stewart,
3¢} Patrick Stewart, who is said to have d. unmarried when still a young man.
3c} George Stewart, resided at Dalchroe and m. at Blair Atholl on 10 December, 1767, to
Euphemia, daughter of his cousin John Stewart, and had issue,
3d} Donald Stewart, c. at Blair Atholl on 28 September, 1771, and resided at Dalnacardoch.
He m. to Elizabeth, daughter of Neil Robertson, younger son of Robert Robertson, of
Wester Invervack, and had issue.
3d} John Stewart, c. at Blair Atholl on 31 May, 1778, and d. young.
3d} William Stewart, c. at Blair Atholl on 19 December, 1782, and became a Musician.
3d} Elizabeth Stewart, c. at Blair Atholl on 5 November, 1768, and m. at Blair Atholl on 15
December, 1789, to George Ritchie, in Dunkeld.
3d} Jean Stewart, c. at Blair Atholl on 17 July, 1770, and d. young.
3d} Margaret Stewart, c. at Blair Atholl on 5 February, 1774, and m. to Amos Stewart, in
Loenambhor.
3d} Charlotte Stewart, c. at Blair Atholl on 1 October, 1780.
3d} Janet Stewart, b. on 28 November, 1784.
3d} Ann Stewart, m. at Blair Atholl on 18 August, 1797, to George Robertson, in Kindrochit.
3¢} Robert Stewart,
3¢} Ann Stewart, m. at Blair Atholl in June of 1757 to John Gow, Tenant in Dalchro.
3¢} Jean Stewart, m. at Blair Atholl on 29 August, 1765, to Alexander Duff, in Moulinearn.
3¢} Mary Stewart, m. to James Forbes, Miller in Ceinachrage.
3¢} Elizabeth Stewart, m. to Robert brec Stewart.
3¢} Catherine Stewart, m. to Alexander Campbell, in Brae of Pitcastle.
3¢} Christian Stewart, m. at Blair Atholl on 6 April, 1762, to Robert Robertson, in Glenshee
3b} Christian Stewart, m. to Fergus MacLachlan.
3b} Euphemia Stewart
3a} Robert Stewart, said to have m. to Euphemia, daughter of Alexander Stewart, of Urrard, and was father of,
3b} John Stewart, m. to Elizabeth, daughter of Andrew Small, of Dirnanean, and was father of,
3¢} James Stewart, ¢. at Dowally on 15 November, 1739, and m. to Janet, daughter of James
Haggart, in Amulree. He was father of,
3d} John Stewart, of Persie, ¢. at Dowally on 1 December, 1777, and obtained the lands of
Persie. He m. to Helen, daughter of Captain Thomas Stewart, second son of John
Stewart, of Dalguise, and was father of,
3e} James Stewart,
3e} Susanna Dick Stewart, b. at Edinburgh on 13 April, 1811.
3d} James Stewart, c. at Dowally on 5 April, 1780.
3d} Margaret Stewart, ¢. at Dowally on 26 November, 1772, and d. young.
3d} Elizabeth Stewart, c. at Dowally on 13 June, 1774.
3d} Margaret Stewart, c. at Dowally on 1 December, 1777.



3¢} George Stewart, d. unmarried.
3c} Robert Stewart, ¢. at Dowally on 6 April, 1750, and d. in Jamaica.
3c} John Stewart, d. in Jamaica.
3¢} Peter Stewart, c. at Dowally on 21 September, 1755.
3¢} Humphrey Stewart, ¢. at Dowally on 23 October, 1759, and d. aged twelve years.
3¢} Jean Stewart, d. young.
3¢} Euphemia Stewart, m. to her second cousin George Stewart and had issue.
3¢} Elizabeth Stewart, ¢. at Dowally on 6 April, 1750.
3¢} Charlotte Stewart, m. at Dowally on 26 March, 1750, to Thomas Mann.
3a} John Stewart, resided in Glen Fincastle and is said to have married and had one daughter.
3a} Malcolm Stewart, resided at Sheirglass and had two daughters.
3a} Alasdair Stewart, who resided at Blar-uacheair and had one daughter.
3a} Patrick Stewart, m. to Janet Stewart and had three daughters.
3a} James Stewart,
3a} Christian Stewart,
3a} Grace Stewart,

WILLIAM STEWART, 3* OF DRUMCHARRY, succeeded his father by 8 December, 1641, when he charged John
Stewart of Inverkynnachan, John Stewart of Overblairish, and several others, to find caution not to harm
either himself or his family and friends and had a Charter of Alienation from Alexander Menzies of
Comrie for the lands of Wester Drumcharry on 25 June, 1645. He m. to Christian, daughter of Donald
Robertson, 1% of Kincraigie (¢/m 6 June, 1648%%. She d. in June of 1665) and secondly to Christian,
daughter of Neil Stewart, of Overblarish, (¢/m 3 July, 1674%%®) He d. in 1704?*° and was father of,

1. Patrick Stewart, 4™ of Drumcharry (see below).

2. Beatrix Stewart,

3. Margaret Stewart, m. to Alexander Stewart, son of Malcolm Stewart, of Innerslannie, (¢/zm in December of 1674
with a Tocher of £500 Scots??).

4. Catherine Stewart, m. to Patrick Campbell, of East Schian, (¢/m 14 February, 1700,'), and had issue.

5. Elspeth Stewart, m. to Robert Stewart, of Culdaff, who granted a Discharge to William Stewart, of Drumcharry,
her father for Tocher on 28 February, 1682.

6. Jean Stewart, m. to Neil Stewart, son of Dugald Stewart, of Insheroch, (¢/m 6 February, 1680,%?)and had issue.

7. Susanna Stewart, all of which daughters are mentioned in their mother’s Testament in June of 1665. She m. to
John Menzies, in Carse, (¢/m 5 December, 1685%%), and had issue.

8. Grissell Stewart, m. to Duncan Stewart, of Bealoch, in Appin, (¢/m 13 July, 1702,%*).

9. Robert Stewart, 1% of Garth, a son by his father’s second marriage and served in the Jacobite army during the
uprising of 1715. He was taken prisoner at Preston in November of that year and was transported to America
where he was bound to serve Captain Edward Trafford for the period of seven years although he was transferred
to the service of William Gordon who sent him to Scotland on business on 3 May, 1717.*° He obtained the lands
of Garth in around 1731, m. at Dull on 30 June, 1709, to Mary, daughter to Thomas Fleming, 6" of Moness, and
was father of,

9a} William Stewart, 2™ of Garth, ¢, at Dull on 11 May, 1710, and suceeded his father in the lands of Garth. He
m. firstly at Dull on 17 August, 1736, to Grissell, daughter of John Scrimgeour. He m. secondly to Jean,
daughter of William Stewart, of Drumcharry, (¢/m 27 December, 1738,) d. in 1756*° and was father of,
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9b} Robert Stewart, 3™ of Garth, b. in 1740 and m. at Dull on 27 September, 1765, to Janet, eldest
daughter and coheiress of David Stewart, 2" of Kynnachan, (she was served heir to her father on 16
June, 1768). He d. on 26 October, 1820, and had issue,
9c} William Stewart, 4™ of Garth, bap. at Dull on 25 October, 1766, and was served heir to his
father in the lands of Garth on 5 March, 1821. He was served heir to his “grand uncle” Patrick
Stewart of Drumcharry in the lands of Drumcharry on 11 December, 1820, and d. without
legitimate issue on 26 July, 1822.%” He was father of,
9d} Betty Stewart, a natural daughter by Mary MacGregor who was bap. at Fortingall on 29
November, 1795.
9c¢} David Stewart, 5% of Garth, b. in 1772, attained the rank of Major-General in the army and d.
unmarried at St Lucia on 18 December, 1829. He was father of,
9d} Neil Stewart, a natural son who was apprenticed onboard a Merchant ship trading with
West Indies. He was a gentleman’s servant in Edinburgh by 1837.
9d} Jean Stewart, a natural daughter by Christian MacLean who was ¢ at Fortingall on 23
December, 1823.
9c} John Stewart, bap. at Dull on 16 August, 1777, was a Planter in the West Indies for many years
and d. in 1832. He was father of several natural children,
9d} John Stewart, a natural son who resided with his brothers in the West Indies. All are
named in a letter the family attorney in West Indies, John Losh, concerning their wish to
have their legacies of £100 paid by the family back in Scotland.
9d} William Stewart,
9d} David Stewart,
9d} Robert Stewart,
9d} Ann Stewart, a natural daughter by Charlotte Tobin, “a free couloured woman,” who was
bap. at Grenada on 17 March, 1810. She came back to Scotland with her father in 1823
and lived with her relations, the Irvines at Craigatin where she d. unmarried in 1859.
9c} Alexander Stewart, a natural son by Elizabeth MacGregor who was bap. at Fortingal on 6
December, 1789.
9c} Janet Stewart, served heir to her father on 23 June, 1834, and to her brother John Stewart on 29
August, 1836, and to her brother General David Stewart in the lands of Garth on 27 October,
1830. She m. on 3 April, 1805, to Alexander Irvine, Minister at Little Dunkeld, (he d on 31
July, 1824), and d. on 18 March, 1865. They had issue,
9d} Alexander Robertson Irvine, b. at Fortingall on 20 January, 1806, and was appointed
Minister of Blair-Atholl. He m. firstly on 2 June, 1833, to Margaret, daughter of Joseph
Stewart-Menzies, 11% of Foss, (she was ¢ at Dull on 15 December, 1809, and d. on 22
January, 1836), and secondly at Blair Atholl on 24 September, 1844, to Sophia Jane
Stewart, daughter and heiress of Captain Duncan Robertson, of Kindrochit, (she d. on
25 January, 1856). He d. on 2 September, 1867, and had issue,
9e} Elizabeth MacKenzie Menzies Irvine, the only child by her father’s first marriage
and was c¢. at Dull on 15 May, 1834. She m. to Francis Garden Fraser, of Findrack,
(he d. in December of 1883), and d. on 31 January, 1911. They had issue.
9e} Alexander Irvine, ¢ at Blair Atholl on 20 August, 1842.
9e} Duncan Robertson Irvine, c. at Blair Atholl on 14 May, 1851.
9e} Robert William Irvine, ¢ at Blair Atholl on 31 October, 1853.
9e} Sophia Stewart Robertson Irvine, ¢ at Blair Atholl on 22 September, 1845.
9e¢} Clementina Janet Irvine, c. at Blair Atholl on 20 June, 1849.
9d} Robert Irvine, b. 4 July, 1809, and became a Merchant. He d. while in Trinidad in April
of 1830 leaving no apparent issue.
9d} David Stewart Irvine, b. 14 July, 1810, and d. on 27 December, 1839
9d} William Stewart Irvine, . on 23 May, 1818, and became a Doctor. He m. at Moulin on
12 February, 1850, to Sarah Margaret Black, d. at Pitlochry on 13 October, 1893, and
had issue,
9e} Alexander Irvine, bap. at Moulin on 23 April, 1852.
9e} Henry Irvine, bap. at Moulin on 6 December, 1854.
9e} William Stewart Irvine, bap. at Moulin on 14 February, 1861.
9e} Jessie Marion Irvine, bap. at Moulin on 28 April, 1851.
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9e} Margaret Eliza Stewart Irvine, bap. at Moulin on 11 December, 1858.
9d} James John Irvine, b. 26 May, 1815, and d. in around 1829.
9d} Clementina Ann Stewart Irvine, b. 29 July, 1807, m. at Moulin on 11 July, 1839, to her
cousin Dr. Charles MacDiarmid and dsp en route to Australia in November of that same
year.
9d} Janet Irvine, b. on 18 July, 1817, and d. on 28 January, 1819.
9b} Charles Stewart, who entered the army.
9b} Christian Stewart, m. at Dull on 10 October, 1777, to John Stewart, younger of Foss, and dsp.
9a} Thomas Stewart, resided at Duntaullich and m. at Dull on 20 July, 1749, to Ann, daughter of George Dow,
of Tichardy. He was buried on 15 August, 1764, and was father of,
9b} Robert Stewart, ¢. at Dull on 18 June, 1750, and granted a receipt to Robert Stewart of Garth for
board at the school of John Bean in Blackford in 1765.
9b} Charles Stewart, c. at Fortingall on 10 January, 1756.
9b} Betty Stewart, c. at Foss on 18 December, 1752, and granted a reciept for board to her cousin Robert
Stewart of Garth in 1767.
9b} Mary Stewart, ¢ at Fortingall on 21 March, 1759.
9b} Christian Stewart, ¢. at Fortingall on 10 September, 1761.
9a} Neil Stewart, c. at Balquhidder on 17 October, 1728, is styled as third son of Robert Stewart of Garth in
1757 when he granted Letters of factory to Robert Stewart of Garth as he had joined Montgomery
Regiment of Foot. He had issue,
9b} Charles Stewart, a natural son by Isabel MacDonald who was c¢. at Fortingal on 15 November, 1749.
His father agreed in 1757 to pay maintenance until he reached the age of 18.
9a} Robert Stewart, styled as uncle to Robert Stewart of Garth in a Letter to this nephew regarding a dispute
between Stewart of Inchgarth and Campbell of Glenlyon in 1780.>%
9a} Isobel Stewart, m. Robert Menzies, in Leinmore of Glenquaich, (¢/m 11 June, 1735%°).
9a} Christian Stewart, m. Robert Menzies, in Kirkton of Weem, (¢/m 29 November, 1736°®).
9a} Ann Stewart, had a Bond of Provision with her brothers Thomas, Neil and Robert and her sister Jean from
her brother William Stewart, younger of Garth, on 27 December, 1738, and m. at Dull on 31 July, 1747,
to Duncan Stewart, in Lismore, son of Duncan Stewart in Auchnacoan, in Glencoe, (¢/m 4 July, 1747°%?).
9a} Jean Stewart, m. at Weem on 2 March, 1760, to Archibald Campbell, in Tynloan, son of Alexander
Campbell, Tacksman at Finlarig, (¢/m 5 November, 1761°%), and had issue.
9. Duncan Stewart, styled as third son of William Stewart of Drumcharry in a Discharge by John Stewart, in
Auchmore, and Patrick Stewart of Drumcharry of certain sums of money due in 1706.***
10. Alexander Stewart, granted a Discharge to his brother Robert Stewart in Brae of Moness in 1712°* and d. by
1717. He was father of,
10a} William Stewart, styled as son of the deceased Alexander Stewart in a Discharge by himself to Charles
Stewart, son of Patrick Stewart of Drumcharry in 1717.%%
11. William Stewart, styled as fifth son to William Stewart of Drumcharry in a Discharge by himself to his brother
Robert Stewart in Brae of Moness in 1713.3%

PATRICK STEWART, 4™ OF DRUMCHARRY, had a Disposition from his father for the lands of Wester
Drumcharry on 15 June, 1670, in which he is styled as his only son*® and whom he succeeded by 7
February, 1699, when he raised Letters of Caption against John Robertson of Guay. He m. firstly to Isabel,
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daughter to Robert Fleming, 4™ of Moness, and had issue ; and secondly to Janet, eldest daughter of
Donald Robertson, of Eastertyre, (¢/m 3 November, 1685,*) and was father of,

1. William Stewart, 5" of Drumcharry, (see below).

2. Charles Stewart, of Inchgarth, apprenticed to Charles Stewart, Merchant in Perth, on 2 June, 1704, and was
served heir provisional to his brother Patrick Stewart in the lands of Drumcharry by his father on 27 November,
1710, and is then styled as second and youngest son to his father. He obtained the lands of Inchgarth in around
1733, m. to Helen, daughter of Charles Stewart, of Rotmell, (she was widow of Alexander Stewart, 5% of
Findoynet, whom she had m. by ¢/m 27 January, 1702,’° and by whom she had issue), and d. in 1765 and prior
to 23 September of that year.’'! He was father of,

2a} James Stewart, younger of Inchgarth, served as an Officer in the Atholl Brigade of the Jacobite army in 1745
and was ksp at the battle of Culloden on 16 April, 1746.
2a} Anna Stewart, had a Disposition from her father for the lands of Inchgarth on 30 September, 1760,’'* and
which she disponed to Dr. David Campbell, of Glenlyon, on 23 February, 1785.°* She m. at Fortingall on
29 December, 1765, to Neil Stewart, brother of Charles Stewart, of Bohally, and dsp.
3. Isabel Stewart, m. to John Stewart, son of Neil Stewart, in Auchmore, (¢/m 9 February, 1705***), and had issue.

WILLIAM STEWART, 5™ OF DRUMCHARRY, had a Disposition from his father for the lands of Wester
Drumcharry on 27 November, 1710, and for which he had a Charter of Confirmation under the Great
Seal on 12 February, 1711. He m. at Auchtermuchty on 25 December, 1713, to Mary, daughter of John
Moncrieft, of Mornipy, d. in 1766*'"° and was father of,

1. Patrick Stewart, 6™ of Drumcharry, (see below).

2. Ann Stewart, to whom her brother Patrick Stewart of Drumcharry granted a Disposition for the lands of
Drumcharry in 1775.%'6

3. Mary Stewart, mentioned with her sister in a Bond by their father in favour of Sir Robert Menzies and reffered to
at a later date in 1780,’"” and m. to James Rattray, in Blackcraig.

4. Jean Stewart, m. to William Stewart, 2" of Garth, (¢/m 27 December, 1738. He was widow of Grissell, daughter of
John Scrimgeour, whom he had m. at Dull on 17 August, 1736,. He d. in 1756) and had issue.

PATRICK STEWART, 6™ OF DRUMCHARRY, had a Disposition for the lands of Drumcharry from his father to be
held by himself and his heirs, whom failing, by Robert Stewart of Garth and his heirs on 24 June, 1761,*'®
and dspin June of 1776.3"
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